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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the contents
of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss

howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of WLS Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete
in all material respects and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this
report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are found

on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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OUR MISSION

“CIRCLE AND SQUARE” CONCEPT

In this intensely competitive world, the winners are those who take the initiative
to build a solid foundation before dedicating efforts on self improvement and

enhancing business efficiencies.

WLS Holdings Limited (‘WLS’ or the ‘Company’), with excellent business
acumen, takes a proactive stance on incorporating the ‘Circle and Square’
concept into its corporate mission. The underlying meaning of having a ‘Circle’
encompassing a square symbolises the importance of offering smooth services

and flexibility to external parties, and internally, attention to detail.

Cautiousness and striving after perfection are equally important. That is why
we shall adhere unwaveringly to our principle of perpetual emphasis and

continuous improvement on ‘Safety, Quality and Efficiency’.

WLS practises and preaches the theory of ‘Circle and Square’ by integrating
flexibility into every step of its operations as well as abiding by every legal

regulation and restriction.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

#HZE M H =1 H 1L B BUEEE Financial Year ended 30 April

R = i St S ZR——AF R R
2013 2012 2011 2010
T#L BRI T T
HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
(FE51) (E3%1)) (E%1)
(restated) (restated) (restated)
B Turnover 125,949 115,124 105,741 133,273
BB (BFE) Wi Fl  (Loss)/Profit before taxation (13,968) 6,432 (28,193) (9,524)
AKNFIMELSFFA N (Loss)/Profit for the year
JEAG A 4R BE attributable to equity
(f518) it holders of the Company (14,219) 7,146 (26,174) (7,669)

R (B48) 2 (Loss)/Earnings per share

(HsAIl1) (HK cent) 1.27) 0.64 (3.00) (0.97)

Wit - AL AR S FE LA A = HEH 2 #E R Notes: The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 23 July 2001 and became
FEMAL S A A = H A the holding company of the companies now comprising the Group on 23 November
ZERFFE ([ ERFFE ) il 2 55 13 40 i 17 2001 as a result of the Group Reorganisation as set out in the Company’s Prospectus
CET AR — ] A= H I B A 1 dated 30 November 2001 (the “Prospectus”).
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I have pleasure to present this year’s annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”). Despite the severe competition in all the
Group’s market segments, the Company posted an increase in turnover during
the financial year ended 30 April 2013. During the year, the turnover of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$125,949,000, representing an increase of
approximately 9% as compared with a turnover of approximately HK$115,124,000
of the preceding year. Net loss attributable to equity holders for the year ended 30
April 2013 amounted to approximately HK$14.2 million as compared to a net profit
attributable to equity holders of approximately HK$7.1 million of the preceding
year.

In respect of the core business of the scaffolding division, operating results are
satisfactory. Amid severe price competition, the gross profit margin, in fact, has
decreased whilst the Group consolidated its position as the market leader in the
scaffolding business. In addition, the fitting out business division maintained
its market share and opted to render service to the more reputable clients in its
marketing strategy. Moreover, the business contribution from the gondola business
is satisfactory as a result of continued demand for temporary gondolas from the
buildings repair and maintenance sector. The Group will stand to benefit from this
increase in demand with our policy of expanding our fleet of gondolas for rental
adopted for the current year.

In regard to the result of the operations of the research and development, the “Pik-
Lik” brand (formerly known as “Thunderbolt”) of system scaffolding, which was
invented and developed for application by the Group, was granted a short-term
patent by The Hong Kong Patents Registry. Unrelenting efforts were devoted
and exerted to widely promote the usage of this unique system scaffolding in the
lift shaft areas and external facades of construction sites. The main advantages
of this system scaffolding when utilized in such areas includes the substantially
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enhancement of the efficiency in scaffold erection and dismantlement lead to its
adoption much to the wide acclaim of the construction industry. I am optimistic
of the Group’s success in promoting the wide adoption of the employment of this
ingenious “Pik-Lik’ brand of system scaffolding which will in turn contribute
positively to the operating results of the Group on a respectable scale.

At present, the Hong Kong economy is undergoing a consolidation phase in both
real estate sector and consumer sector. Nevertheless, the continued growth in
construction activities in infra-structure projects will contribute to maintain the
profit margin and business prospects of the Group. The anticipated tapering of the
quantitative easing measures adopted by the U.S. Federal Reserve may present
a further element of uncertainty to the overall world economy. Therefore with
great prudence, I envisage the enormous support of the PRC market will alleviate
substantially the financial harm suffered by the local economy brought about by the
global financial turmoil of the previous years.

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), I would like to thank all our
staff for their continuous hard work and dedication to the Group. With the constant
vigilance of our management in maintaining the cost-effectiveness and optimal
efficiency of the Group, together with our global network of business connections,
I am of the opinion that the Group will experience a turnaround in terms of
improvement in our business operations in the coming financial year.

So Yu Shing
Chairman

29 July 2013
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BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 30 April 2013, the turnover of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$125,949,000, representing an increase of about 9% as compared
with a turnover of approximately HK$115,124,000 of the preceding year. Net loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year ended 30 April 2013 was
approximately HK$14,219,000, as compared to the net profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company of approximately HK$7,146,000 of the preceding year.

As at the year ended 30 April 2013, the business operations of the scaffolding
division continued to experience severe competition from competitors.
Nevertheless, the scaffolding division received an increased number of invitations to
tender its services for real estate development projects as well as large-scale infra-
structure projects such as the Mass Transit Railway Island South Line Stations and
the West Kowloon Terminus (North & South) of the Express Rail Link. During
the year ended 30 April 2013, the scaffolding division was awarded 19 new works
contracts for the provision of scaffolding services. Amongst these new contracts,
the most notable ones are the provision of scaffolding services to Science Park
(Phase 3) and to the Mass Transit Railway Ocean Park Station and Wong Chuk
Hang Station together with the provision of metal-bamboo system scaffolding to the
residential development site in Yoho Town (Phase 3) and in Century Gateway. All
the scaffolding projects proceeded according to plan.

In respect of the operating results of the fitting out business division, five new
fitting out contracts were secured during the year ended 30 April 2013. Amongst
the new contracts, the most notable one is the provision of fitting out services to the
International Commerce Centre (ICC). Concurrently, the other on-going projects
for the supply and installation of aluminium ceiling and cladding to a residential
development in Ha Yau Tin in Yuen Long and the provision of fitting out services to
Century Gateway in Tuen Mun proceeded according to plan during the year ended
30 April 2013.
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In regard to the gondolas, parapet railings and access equipment installation and
maintenance service division, the Group’s fleet of temporary gondolas attained a
high rate of utilization during the year ended 30 April 2013. The management of the
Group predicted the continued boom in the rental market for temporary gondolas
would further boost the operating results of the access equipment division. During
the year under review, a new contract for the supply of a building maintenance
system to a residential development project in 11-39 Blue Pool Road, Happy
Valley and another new contract for the supply of aerial work platforms to the
construction site in Riva, Ha Ko Po Tsuen were secured. In addition, the contract
for the design, supply and installation of building maintenance units to Parcels
5 and 6 of the Venetian in Macau was completed during the year ended 30 April
2013. Furthermore, the provision of maintenance services to the access equipment
of Stonecutters Bridge was on-going thus providing a constant revenue inflow to
the gondolas, parapet railings and access equipment installation and maintenance
service division.

In regard to the research and development results of the Group, a special “Pik-Lik”
(formerly called “Thunderbolt”) brand of system scaffolding was invented by the
Group and widely promoted to specific usage in the lift shaft areas and external
facades of construction sites. This unique scaffolding system when applied to such
areas can enhance the efficiency in scaffold erection and dismantlement lead to its
adoption, much to the acclaim of the entire construction industry. The management
of the Group is optimistic that such invention can contribute substantially to the
profitability of the Group in the foreseeable future.

During the financial year under review, a short-term patent was granted by the
Patents Registry of The Intellectual Property Department of Hong Kong for the
“Pik-Lik” scaffolding. Furthermore, an application had been made and submitted to
obtain international patents in Europe as well as in U.S.A. for the “Pik-Lik” brand
of system scaffold which reinforces the status of the Group as a market leader in
the scaffolding industry in terms of its possession and constant development of

advanced technology in cost-efficient scaffolding systems.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The current climate of the Hong Kong economy on a macro-economic level is rather
encouraging. As China GNP growth rate continued to outpace the other parts of
the world amid the turmoil of Europe’s debt crisis and the slow recovering U.S.
economy, it is the views of most economic analysts that we could safely assume
the current local real estate market boom would continue, resulting in increased
construction activities both in the public and private sectors. This ‘ripple effect’ is
predicted to ultimately benefit the Group’s business operations and profitability.

During the financial year ended 30 April 2013, the management of the Group was
committed to vigilant cost control in all operating units. By undertaking stringent
budget control and in view of the current bullish property market and increased
number of infra-structure and real estate development projects in Hong Kong, the
management of the Group is of the opinion that our business is on the right track and
would improve steadily in the ensuing reporting periods.

Project Portfolio (As at 30 April 2013)
Hong Kong

. Century Gateway

. Riva

. Yoho Town, Phase 3
. i-UniQ Grand

. Chatham Gate

. The Wings

. One Regent Place

. Imperial Cullinan
. AnaCapri (Park Island — Phase 6)
. Avignon

. West Kowloon Terminus Station (South), Express Rail Link

. West Kowloon Terminus Station (North), Express Rail Link

. Midfield Concourse of Hong Kong International Airport

. Ocean Park Station and Wong Chuk Hang Station of MTRC

. Science Park (Phase 3)

. Chinese People’s Liberation Army Force Hong Kong Building

. Redevelopment of Victoria Park Swimming Pool Complex

. St. Paul’s Hospital Redevelopment

. Commercial Building Development at 3 Connaught Road Central

. Commercial Building Development at 16 Hart Avenue, Tsimshatsui

. Commercial Building Development at 31-37 Des Voeux Road Central
. Kowloon Commercial Centre (Phase 2), Kwai Chung

. Commercial Building Development at 181 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong
. Joint-user Complex at Bailey Street, To Kwa Wan Reclamation

. Hong Kong Polytechnic University Phase 8 Development

. Baptist University Road Campus Development

. Residential Development at 1 Sai Wan Terrace

. Residential Development at 1 Broadcast Drive, Kowloon Tong

. Residential Development at TMTL No. 422, Siu Lam
. Residential Development at 3-5 Ede Road, Kowloon Tong

11
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. Residential Development at Casam Beach

. Residential Development at 56-66 Nga Tsin Long Road, Kowloon City

. Residential Development at 8§ Mount Nicholson Road

. Composite Development at Junction of Plover Cove Road & Po Wu Lane,
Tai Po

. Composite Development at K.I.L 11200, Fuk Tsun Street, Tai Kok Tsui

. Public Housing Development at Ex-Cheung Sha Wan Police Quarters
. Public Housing Development at Anderson Road, Site D
. Development at F.S.S.T.L. 177, Sha Tau Kok Road, Fanling

. Development at 1-23 Tang Lung Street, Causeway Bay

. Development at 32-50 Haven Street, Causeway Bay

. Public Rental Housing Development at Ex-Shatin Married Quarters

. Public Rental Housing Development at Kwai Shing Circuit

. Composite Building at N.K.I.L. 6494, Lai Chi Kok Road, Shamshuipo

. Lamma Power Station Extension Maintenance Building
. Refurbishment of Royal Plaza Hotel
. Refurbishment of 127 Repulse Bay Road

FINANCIAL REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

During the year under review, the Group recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$125,949,000, representing an increase of approximately 9% as compared with
that of the preceding year. The award of new works contracts in the scaffolding
and fitting out division accounted for an increase of turnover in Hong Kong. The
Company recorded a net loss attributable to its equity holders of approximately
HK$14,219,000 during the year ended 30 April 2013. This net loss was mainly
due to allowances made for impairment of trade and receivables, bad and doubtful
debt written off, write off of amount due from customers for contract work and
impairment of amounts due from jointly controlled entities and associates of the
Group totalling HK$20,231,000 during the year.

Gross profit of the Group decreased by approximately 8% as compared with last
year whilst gross profit margin decreased to approximately 15% during the year.
Gross profit margin of the Hong Kong scaffolding division decreased amid the

current keen competition.

During the year under view, operating expenses (excluding bad and doubtful debts
of: HK$13,452,000 (2012: HK$18,317,000)) decreased by approximately 26%
as compared to the preceding year. The management of the Group continues to
adopt a policy of vigilant cost monitoring and operation streamlining in an effort to

minimise cost and optimise efficiency.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES, CAPITAL
STRUCTURE AND GEARING RATIO

During the year under review, the Group financed its operations by banking
facilities and finance leases provided by banks and finance companies. As at 30
April 2013, the Group’s consolidated shareholders’ funds, current assets, net current
assets and total assets were approximately HK$134,234,000 (2012: approximately
HK$147,777,000), approximately HK$139,363,000 (2012: approximately
HKS$147,287,000), approximately HK$61,577,000 (2012: approximately
HK$86,432,000) and approximately HK$208,892,000 (2012: approximately
HK$205,050,000) respectively.

As at 30 April 2013, the Group’s consolidated bank overdrafts and bank loans
were approximately HK$13,968,000 (2012: approximately HK$7,500,000)
and approximately HK$35,237,000 (2012: approximately HK$28,311,000)
respectively. As at 30 April 2013, obligations under finance leases amounted
to approximately HK$1,631,000 (2012: approximately HK$916,000), of which
HK$610,000 is due for repayment next year and approximately HK$1,021,000 is
due for repayment after next year.

As at 30 April 2013, the Group’s bank and cash balances amounted to approximately
HK$7,221,000 (2012: approximately HK$7,119,000). As at 30 April 2013, the
Group’s gearing ratio (total bank borrowings and obligations under finance leases
divided by shareholders’ fund) was approximately 38% (2012: approximately 25%).

Most of the Group’s bank and cash balances, bank borrowings and obligations under
finance leases are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Most of the bank borrowings
bear interest at market rates and are repayable by instalments over a period of 3
months to 9 years. Obligations under finance leases have an average lease term
of 3 years. All such leases have interest rates fixed at the contract date and fixed
repayment bases.

The Directors believe that the Group is in a healthy financial position and has

sufficient resources to discharge its debts and to satisfy its commitments and
working capital requirements.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
30 April 2013 (year ended 30 April 2012: None).
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SEGMENT INFORMATION
Operating segments

The Group is currently organised into 3 operating segments — (i) scaffolding and
fitting out services for construction and building work, (ii) management contracting
services for construction and building work and (iii) gondolas, parapet railings
and access equipment installation and maintenance services. Details of results by
business segments are shown in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Geographical segments

The customers of the three divisions of the Group are situated in Hong Kong
and Macau. Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements provides analysis
of the turnover, carrying amounts of segment assets and capital expenditure by
geographical markets.

DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Directors do not have any future plans for material investments or capital assets.

PLEDGE ON ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has pledged the following assets
against general banking facilities granted to the Group:

R = S S

2013 2012

F#L THT

HK$’000 HK$°000

E¢7/ES Investment properties 35,750 29,340
TH B = e i Leasehold land and buildings 7,817 8,046
AT Bank deposits 680 680
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OUTSTANDING LITIGATION

The outstanding litigation between one of the Group’s subsidiaries, Wui Loong
Scaffolding Works Company Limited and Able Contractors Limited brought
forward from the previous financial year was settled during the year ended 30 April
2013.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the assets and liabilities of the Group are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. Wui Loong Scaffolding Works Company Limited, one of the Group’s
subsidiaries, entered into a foreign currency forward contract with DBS Bank (Hong
Kong) Limited on 27 March 2013. This foreign currency forward contract is a
derivative and classified as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss. The
Directors consider that there is potential foreign exchange exposure of the Group in
regard of this foreign currency forward contract.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 30 April 2013, the Group provided counter indemnities amounting to
HK$646,600 (2012: HK$646,600) to banks for surety bonds issued by the banks in
respect of construction contracts.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30 April 2013, the total number of full-time employees of the Group was
137 (2012: 131). The total remuneration paid to employees (including directors’
emoluments) amounted to HK$39,475,000 in 2013 (2012: HK$29,943,000).
Employees are remunerated according to their performance and working
experience. In addition to basic salaries and participation in the mandatory provident
fund scheme, staff benefits include performance bonus, medical scheme, share
options and training.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 30 April 2013, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Code on Corporate Governance Practice set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules (“Code on Corporate Governance Practices”) which is effective for
the accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2005 has replaced the
minimum standard of good practices for issuers and their directors stated in Rules
5.35 to 5.45 of the GEM Listing Rules. In the opinion of the Board, the Company
has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices. A Corporate
Governance Report will be despatched with the annual report of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 9 November 2001 with written
terms of reference that clearly establish the audit committee’s authority and duties.
The audit committee currently comprises 3 independent non-executive directors of
the Company, Mr. Lam Kwok Wing, Mr. Yeung Po Chin and Dr. Fung Ka Shuen.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review the Company’s annual
report and accounts, half-year report and quarterly reports and provide advice
and comments thereon to the Board. The audit committee is also responsible for
reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process and internal control
procedures of the Group.

Five audit committee meetings were held since 1 May 2012 up to the date of this
report.
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Executive Directors

Dr. So Yu Shing (#§i&J%), aged 61, is the chairman of the Group. Dr. So Yu Shing
has served in the Labour Department of the Hong Kong Government before joining
Wui Loong Scaffolding Works Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, on 17 September 1991. He holds a bachelor of arts degree from the
University of Hong Kong and a master of science degree in engineering business
management from Warwick University of the United Kingdom. In 2009, he
acquired a doctorate degree in building and construction from the City University of
Hong Kong. Furthermore, Dr. So has also possessed the Registered Safety Officer
qualification.
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Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca (ZBi#% ), aged 58, is an executive director of the
Company and the spouse of Dr. So Yu Shing. Ms. Lai has been actively involved in
the management of the Group. She had been engaged in the teaching profession for
over 17 years before joining Wui Loong Scaffolding Works Company Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in 1988.
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Mr. Kong Kam Wang (YL %), aged 56, is the chief executive officer and an
executive director of the Company. He has over 20 years of experience in the
banking industry and has held senior management positions specialising in
corporate banking as well as retail banking in a number of banks in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Before joining the Company in March 2002 and being appointed as an
executive director of the Company in June 2002, Mr. Kong was engaged as Vice
President and Zone Manager of First Pacific Bank Limited. In 1994, Mr. Kong
was assigned by First Pacific Bank Limited as representative to set up a Shenzhen
representative office in the PRC. During that period, Mr. Kong established close
relationships with various Chinese Government bureaus and other foreign financial
institutions whilst stationed in the Shenzhen representative office. Mr. Kong
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1981 with an honours
bachelor degree in Business Management. Mr. Kong also obtained an executive
master of business administration degree (“EMBA”) from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong.
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Mr. Woo Siu Lun (#1JE#B¥) , aged 58, is an executive director of the Company. Mr.
Woo has over 28 years of experience in various industries holding senior executive
positions. He was a director and senior partner of Euroair Equipment Supplies
Limited, a local engineering firm specialising in air-conditioning equipment supply
and he held an executive position in Liu Chong Hing Bank Limited for 12 years
before joining Wui Loong Scaffolding Works Company Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, in 1999. Mr. Woo holds a bachelor of social sciences
degree from the University of Hong Kong. He is also an associate of the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and has been a qualified corporate
secretary in Hong Kong for over 20 years.
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Mr. So Wang Bon, Edward (#%°% #8) , aged 32, joined the Group in 2000 as a
director of Wui Loong Scaffolding Works Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, which carries out all the scaffolding work contracts
of the Company. He graduated from Oxford Brookes University in the United
Kingdom with a bachelor of science degree. He also holds a master of science
degree in Engineering Business Management from the University of Warwick in the
United Kingdom. Mr. So is the son of Dr. So Yu Shing, Chairman of the Company
and Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca, an executive director of the Company.
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Mr. Yu Yeung Hoi, Stephen (£ #5¥#), aged 44, graduated from the City University
of Hong Kong with a Higher Diploma in Manufacturing Engineering. Mr. Yu has
extensive experience in project engineering and project co-ordination. He was
appointed as an executive director of the Company with effect from 14 April 2011.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yu was Chief Executive Officer of Zhan Jiang Shi
Zhong Xin Energy Company Limited. Mr. Yu is currently an independent non-
executive director of Swing Media Technology Group, a company listed on the
Singapore Stock Exchange.

19



20

JEREZERR AR 2 E WLS Holdings Limited

o 5F B A A PN

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

B EPUTH S

WEISESEA > L
W B PR A o
B = % A& P AR A
A+—HEEEER
AN RV S I AT
F oo RN FEKR
o R AL R A A
TEA . BEEEE
A& AR ARG R A G 2 EREH -
MRS E R AAT 2 ME R AN > RER - '
wt R BB 7 A A = AR A

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kwok Wing (FRE%E) , aged 59, is a practising accountant and he was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 11 August
2004. He graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor of social
sciences degree and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is the
sole proprietor of K. W. Lam & Co., Certified Public Accountants and has over 30
years of experience in auditing, accounting and taxation.
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Mr. Yeung Po Chin (B525HT) , aged 62, holds a bachelor of arts degree from the
University of Hong Kong. He is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and has been
admitted as a solicitor in England and Wales and as a barrister and solicitor in
Australia (ACT). Mr. Yeung has extensive experience in the legal profession, and
has been a legal adviser to a number of associations and an executive-committee
member of various social clubs. Mr. Yeung is at present a solicitor at T. L. Ip &
Co. Mr. Yeung was appointed as an independent non-executive director on 12
November 2002.
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Dr. Fung Ka Shuen (#§%3i€), aged 52, has been a full-time lecturer in the Department
of Engineering of the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Tsing Yi),
Vocational Training Council since 1995. Dr. Fung received his bachelor of science
degree from the National Tsing Hua University, Taiwan in mechanical engineering.
He also received a D.E.A. From National Ecole Superieure de Mecanique et
d’Aerotechnique, University de Poitiers, France and a PhD degree from Imperial
College, University of London in fluid mechanics respectively. Dr. Fung is currently
the Course Leader of Higher Diploma in Environmental Engineering and Energy
Management and the Group Leader of Environmental Technology Solution Group.
In the past four years, Dr. Fung published over 20 papers in the field of air pollution,
healthcare facilities, noise and environmental protection. Dr Fung is a member of
the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, the Institution of Mechanical Engineers,
the Royal Aeronautical Society and the Institution of Registered Professional
Engineers. Besides, Dr. Fung is the Assistant Honorary Secretary of the Hong Kong
Institute of Marine Technology and a committee member of the Royal Aeronautical
Society (Hong Kong Branch). He was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 28 September 2007.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yau Siu Kwong (F£Jk)) , aged 41, is the general manager of the scaffolding
division of the Company. He first joined the Group in July 1997 and is responsible
for research and development, marketing and business development. He holds a
bachelor of science degree from the University of Alberta, Canada and a master
of science degree in environmental management from the University of London,
Imperial College of Science, Technology and Medicine. He also obtained a master of
business administration degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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Mr. Lee Sze Chung (Z=JU) , aged 44, is the financial controller and qualified
accountant of the Company. Mr. Lee joined the Group in August 2007. He holds
a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from the University of Wollongong of New
South Wales, Australia and a postgraduate diploma in corporate administration from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Lee is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
Certified Practising Accountant of CPA Australia. He is an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators, and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and also an ordinary
member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Lee had over 14 years’ experience in auditing, accounting and financial
management.
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Mr. So Yu Fai, David (#¥%#f), aged 54, joined the Group in 2006 as a director
of Skylon International Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, a member of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors and also a member of the Chartered Institute of Building.
He had served on a number of committees of these three professional bodies over
the last 20 years and has an in-depth knowledge of professional matters related to a
wide variety of construction standards and ethics. Mr. So has an honours UK degree
in buildings economics and an Australian master degree in project management.
In addition to his wide experience in construction works, he also worked for the
Australian Federal Government as an administration officer for several years.
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Mr. Ma Chung Ki (}§H5}), aged 61, is the project and quantity surveyor manager
of the Group. Mr. Ma joined the Group in 2012. He holds a Higher Certificate in
Construction Engineering and is also an authorized signatory of Minor Works Class
I, II & III (Type A & B) and of Minor Works Class II&III (Type C, D, E, F & G).
Mr. Ma has more than 40 years’ working experience in the construction industry
and has been a director of an ASD Group C-Building Works Approved Contractor
and a Buildings Department Registered General Building Contractor (RGBC)
construction company before joining the Group.
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Mr. Mak Chung Shun, Johnny (F"{5), aged 45, is the quantity surveying
manager of the Group. Mr. Mak holds a Higher Diploma in Building Technology
and Management and a Master of Science Degree in Construction Law and Dispute
Resolution. He is a full corporate member of The Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors and the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators. Mr. Mak has over 16 years’
extensive experience in quantity surveying. He worked for a number of reputable
main contractors and quantity surveying consultants in Hong Kong and has been
involved in a number of government and private construction projects in Hong Kong
and Macau.
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Mr. Chung Kam Ning (8% 8 %), aged 62, is a quantity surveyor in the scaffolding
division of the Company. His previous experience includes working as an
engineer in Pittsburgh, U.S.A. for certain construction projects, such as US Steel,
Shippingport Atomic Power Plant and USSR Kamar River Truck Foundry. After
returning to Hong Kong, he was engaged in the field of building and construction,
construction machinery and plant and building services. Mr. Chung has participated
in various large scale construction projects internationally and locally, such as Daya
Bay, Jinshan Nuclear power plants, The Three Gorges Hydropower plant, various
highway, railway, coal-fired power plants, mass transit railway, ferry pier and
airport projects.
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Ms. Luk Man Nar, Daisy (F2#}), is a human resources manager of the Company.
She worked for Gammon Construction Limited for 13 years before joining Wui
Loong Scaffolding Works Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, in December 1995. Ms. Luk holds a master of business administration
degree from Liverpool John Moores University, a diploma in administrative
management from the Institute of Administrative Management of the United
Kingdom and a certificate in personnel management from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Human
Resource Management.
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Ms. Yuen Pui Kwan (i), is an Assistant Manager of the Company. She worked
for seven years in the Temasek Holdings Limited, an investment company owned
by the Government of Singapore, before joining the Group in 2005. She holds a
Master of Business Administration degree from The University of South Australia,
a Bachelor degree in Business Administration from The University of Western
Sydney and a Diploma in Management Studies from Hong Kong Management
Association. She is also a member of Hong Kong Management Association.
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Mr. Chan Chor Wai (BEB¥{#), aged 31, is the manager of the scaffolding division
of the Company. He joined the Group in April 2011 and is responsible for research
and development, engineering management and staff training. He holds a bachelor
of Social Sciences in Administration and Public Management Studies from the City
University of Hong Kong and a Higher Diploma of Transport and Logistics Studies
from Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education.
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INTRODUCTION

The Board and the management of the Company are committed to establishing good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The maintenance of high standard
of business ethics and corporate governance practices has always been one of the
Company’s goals. The Company believes that good corporate governance provides
a framework that is essential for effective management, successful business growth
and a healthy corporate culture, thereby leading to the enhancement of shareholders’
value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasise a quality Board,
sound internal controls, transparency and accountability to all shareholders. By
applying rigourous corporate governance practices, the Company believes that its
accountability and transparency will be improved thereby instilling confidence to
shareholders and the public. Throughout the financial year ended 30 April 2013,
the Company has complied with the code provisions in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code™) as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Board has, since the amendments to the GEM Listing Rules regarding
corporate governance practices were first proposed by the Stock Exchange,
continued to monitor and review the Company’s progress in respect of corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance. Meetings were held throughout the year
and where appropriate, circulars and other guidance notes were issued to directors
and senior management of the Company to ensure awareness to issues regarding
corporate governance practices.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board, which currently comprises 9 directors, is collectively responsible for
supervising the management of the business and affairs of the Company and the
Group. Details of the Chairman and the other directors of the Company are set out
in the Directors’ Report. All directors give sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Company and the Group.
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The presence of three independent non-executive directors is considered by the
Board to be a reasonable balance between executive and non-executive directors.
The Board is of the opinion that such balance can provide adequate checks and
balances for safeguarding the interests of shareholders and of the Company. The
non-executive directors provide to the Company with a wide range of expertise and
experience so that independent judgement can effectively be exercised as well as
ensuring that the interests of all shareholders are taken into account. They are also
responsible for participating in Board meetings, dealing with potential conflicts of
interest, serving on Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee, scrutinising the Company and the Group’s performance and reporting.
Through their active participation, they provide their valuable skills, expertise
and experience to the Board and the committees on which they serve so that the
management process can be critically reviewed and controlled.

In full compliance with rule 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed three independent non-executive directors and at least one of them
has the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company has received from each independent non-
executive director an annual confirmation of his independence and the Company
considers such directors to be independent in accordance with each and every
guideline set out in rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

All independent non-executive directors are identified as such in all corporate
communications containing the names of the directors. In addition, there is no
material relationship among members of the Board except that one executive
director is the spouse of the Chairman and one executive director is the son of the
Chairman and his spouse who is also an executive director.
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Board Meetings

The full Board regularly meets in person at least four times every year. The directors

all participated in person. At least 14 days’ notice of all board meetings were given

to all directors, who were all given an opportunity to include matters in the agenda

for discussion. The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda

for the meeting and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations in connection

with the meetings are observed and complied with. The finalised agenda and

accompanying board papers are then sent to all directors at least three days prior to

the meeting.

During the financial year ended 30 April 2013, seven board meetings were held and

the following is an attendance record of the meetings by each director:

HiE &SRR,
Number of HY
meetings attended/ Attendance
Ly E Attendants Total percentage
ATE S Executive Directors
BRI, So Yu Shing 77 100%
itk Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca 77 100%
TLER % Kong Kam Wang 7/7 100%
GBI Woo Siu Lun 77 100%
W So Wang Bon, Edward 7/7 100%
K Yu Yeung Hoi, Stephen 77 100%
B IERATE S Independent Non-executive Directors
b il Yeung Po Chin 77 100%
NT e Lam Kwok Wing 77 100%
Vi 8 Fung Ka Shuen 7/7 100%
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During the regular meetings of the Board, the directors discuss and formulate the
overall strategies of the Company and the Group, monitor financial performances
and discuss the annual and interim results, set annual budgets, as well as discuss and
decide on other significant matters. The execution of daily operational matters is
delegated to management of the Group.

The Company Secretary records the proceedings of each board meeting in detail by
keeping minutes, including the record of all decisions by the board together with
concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if any). Drafts of board minutes are
circulated to all directors for comment and approval as soon as practicable after the
meeting. All minutes are open for inspection at any reasonable time on request by
any director.

All directors have access to relevant and timely information at all times as the
Chairman ensures that management will supply the Board and its committees with
all relevant information in a timely manner. They may make further enquiries if in
their opinion it is necessary or appropriate to request for further information. They
also have unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary,
who is responsible to the Board for providing directors with board papers and related
materials and ensuring that all proper Board procedures are followed and that all
applicable laws and regulations are complied with. If considered necessary and
appropriate by the directors, they may retain the service of independent professional
advisers at the Company’s expense.

In case where a conflict of interest may arise involving a substantial shareholder
or a director, such matter will be discussed through an actual meeting and will not
be dealt with by written resolutions. Independent non-executive directors with no
conflict of interest will be present at meetings dealing with such conflict issues.

The board committees, including the audit committee and the remuneration
committee, have all adopted the applicable practices and procedures used in board
meetings for all committee meetings.
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Shareholders’ Meetings

The annual general meeting and other general meetings of the Company are the
primary forum for communication by the Company with the shareholders and for
shareholders’ participation. All shareholders are encouraged to attend the general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings on their behalf if they
are unable to attend the meetings.

During the year ended 30 April 2013, apart from the annual general meeting held
on 30 August 2012, the Company has not held any other general meetings. The
individual attendance records of the directors at the annual general meeting are as

FOBRAF G A R R follows:
SRR &
&R
Annual General Meeting
LIy Es Attendants attendance percentage
WATE S Executive Directors
BRIV, So Yu Shing 100%
B itk Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca 100%
VL% Kong Kam Wang 100%
GBI Woo Siu Lun 100%
W So Wang Bon, Edward 100%
it Yu Yeung Hoi, Stephen 100%
B IERATE S Independent Non-executive Directors
NTES Lam Kwok Wing 0%
b il Yeung Po Chin 0%
5 e Fung Ka Shuen 100%
FRE R AT AR The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
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The Chairman, Dr. So Yu Shing, is responsible for the Company’s and the Group’s
overall strategy and business development. The Chairman determines the broad
strategic direction of the Group in consultation with the full Board and is responsible
for the macro top-level decisions with regard to the overall business directions of the
Company and the Group.

Mr. Kong Kam Wang is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The authority
and responsibility for running the Company’s business and implementing the
Company’s strategies are carried out by the Chief Executive Officer. The Chief
Executive Officer, with the support of the Executive Directors, is responsible
for the strategic planning of the different business functions and the day-to-day
management and operations of the Company and the Group.
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Training and Support for Directors

All directors, including non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors, must keep breast of their collective responsibilities as directors and of the
business of the Group. As such, the Group provides a comprehensive and formal
induction to each newly appointed director upon his/her appointment. Briefings
and orientations are provided and organised to ensure that the new directors are
familiar with the role of the Board, their legal and other duties as a director as
well as the business and governance practices of the Company and the Group.
Such programmes are tailored to each individual director taking into account their
background and expertise. The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer will
continuously update all directors on the latest developments regarding the GEM
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance of
the same by all directors.

All directors also participate in continuous professional development programmes
provided or procured by the Group, such as external seminars organised by qualified
professionals, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in relation to
their contribution to the Board. A record of the training received by the respective
directors are kept and updated by the company secretary and compliance officer of
the Company.

Each director will, upon his/her first appointment and thereafter on a yearly basis,
disclose to the Company the number and nature of offices held by such director in
public companies and organisations and other significant commitments.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted procedures governing Directors’ securities transactions
in compliance with Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Confirmations
have been obtained from all Directors in compliance with the Rules. Relevant
employees, who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company, are also subject to compliance with guidelines on no
less exacting terms than those set out in the Rules. No incident of non-compliance
was noted by the Company during the financial year ended 30 April 2013.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2006. The Chairman of the
committee is Mr. Yeung Po Chin, an independent non-executive director of the
Company. Other members of this committee include Mr. Lam Kwok Wing and Dr.
Fung Ka Shuen, both being independent non-executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for formulating and recommending
to the Board the remuneration policy, determining the remuneration of executive
directors and members of senior management of the Group, as well as reviewing and
making recommendations on the Company’s share option scheme, bonus structure,
provident fund and other compensation-related issues. This committee consults with
the Chairman on its proposals and recommendations and has access to professional
advice if deemed necessary. The Remuneration Committee is also provided with
other resources enabling it to discharge its duties.
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The specific terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on the
Company’s website. The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year.

During the financial year ended 30 April 2013, one remuneration committee
meeting was held and the following is an attendance record of the meeting by each

W e s committee member:
Hi R S Ha
Number of HY S
meetings attended/ Attendance
mE#H Attendants Total percentage
Wb il Yeung Po Chin 111 100%
NT e Lam Kwok Wing 1/1 100%
R e Fung Ka Shuen 1/1 100%
BB EEE Nomination Committee
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The Nomination Committee was established in March 2012. The Chairman of the
committee is Dr. So Yu Shing, the Chairman and executive director of the Company.
Other members of this committee include Mr. Lam Kwok Wing and Dr. Fung Ka
Shuen, both being independent non-executive directors.

The duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board at least annually, making recommendations on
any proposed changes to the board to complement the Company and the Group’s
corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and selecting individuals nominated for directorship, assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors
and succession planning for directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief
executive officer.

The specific terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on the
Company’s website. The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year. During
the financial year ended 30 April 2013, the Nomination Committee has held one
meeting. The individual attendance record of each member is as follows:

HAJ S Ha
Number of LY
meetings attended/ Attendance
LIy Es Attendants Total percentage
BRIV, So Yu Shing 1/1 100%
NT e Lam Kwok Wing 1/1 100%
5 e Fung Ka Shuen 11 100%
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Term of Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All the executive directors of the Company have each entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years. With the exception of the service
contract in respect of Mr. Yu Yeung Hoi, Stephen, one of the six executive directors,
all the above-mentioned service contracts are continuous until terminated by either
party giving to the other not less than three months’ notice in writing, or by payment
of three months’ salary in lieu of such notice. For Mr. Yu Yeung Hoi, Stephen, his
service contract is continuous until terminated by either party giving to the other not
less than one month’s notice in writing, or by payment of one month’s salary in lieu
of such notice.

The non-executive directors (including the independent non-executive directors)
have no fixed term of office but are subject to the provision of retirement and
rotation of directors under the articles of association of the Company.

All directors, including the executive and non-executive directors, would retire
from office by rotation and are subject to re-election at the annual general meeting
once every three years. In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Woo Siu Lun, Mr. So Wang Bon, Edward and Mr. Yu Yeung Hoi,
Stephen will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, would offer themselves for re-election.

According to the Company’s articles of association, directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first annual general meeting after their
appointment and shall be subject to re-election by shareholders. All directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Audit Committee and Accountability

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensive
assessment of the Company’s and the Group’s performance and prospects. The
Board is also responsible for preparing the accounts of the Company, which give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and the Group on a
going-concern basis, and other price-sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures. The management of the Company and the Group provides all relevant
information and records to the Board enabling it to make the above assessment and
to prepare the accounts and other financial disclosures.

In full compliance with rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Audit Committee,
established in 2001, is currently chaired by Mr. Lam Kwok Wing, an independent
non-executive director, and the other members are Mr. Yeung Po Chin and Dr. Fung
Ka Shuen, both being independent non-executive directors of the Company.

No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the existing auditing firm
of the Company within one year on the date of his ceasing to be a partner or had any
financial interest in the auditing firm.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on the
selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors during the
year under review.

31



32

JEREZERR AR 2 E WLS Holdings Limited

‘e X gk e

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

T2 A G2 £ R AR N 7 2 W
W ~ AFBE K rb I A R MR o R
TV Al A5 22 7] B AR 26 I 2 IR UL 5 At
AT Te A ST 2 WA B B e~ A 4 T T B
EILARSE 5 RAmaf AN 72 W8S B @t BOR K
WRL o WE B g 2 HARE I HUR T AL A
it TR ) A ST B A A g

WHE B G OERM TR B - DU R AT
He BERZHGOHENALAEE %=
POA =+ H IR AR -

WE L —ZFENH =T B IEHBUFE - %
ZEE BT T o &R A A R R
BRANE

The Audit Committee’s primary duties include ensuring the Company’s financial
statements, annual and interim reports and the auditors’ report present a true
and balanced assessment of the Company’s and the Group’s financial position;
reviewing the Company’s and the Group’s financial control, internal control and
risk management systems; and reviewing the Company’s financial and accounting
policies and practices. Other duties of the Audit Committee are set out in its specific
terms of reference which are posted on the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to discharge
its duties. The Company’s Annual Report for the year ended 30 April 2013 has been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

For the financial year ended 30 April 2013, the Audit Committee has held four
meetings. The individual attendance record of each member is as follows:

HiE &SR
Number of HIY S
meetings attended/ Attendance
LIy E Attendants Total percentage
b il Yeung Po Chin 4/4 100%
NT e Lam Kwok Wing 4/4 100%
W5 X HE Fung Ka Shuen 4/4 100%

NEMERMTECZROM AR CEY
dalsk o MATEER TR LHMME B ok
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T A7 B 5 ity B ST 0 T R ik il (44 b
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The Company Secretary keeps full minutes of all Audit Committee meetings. In
line with practices consistent with Board meetings and other committee meetings,
draft and final versions of Audit Committee meeting minutes are circulated to all
members of the Audit Committee for comments, approval and record as soon as
practicable after each meeting.

Internal Control

The Board along with the Audit Committee is responsible for maintaining sound
and effective internal control systems for the Company to safeguard its assets
and shareholders’ interests, as well as for reviewing the effectiveness of such
systems. The Board will from time to time conduct a review of the Company’s and
the Group’s internal control systems. The Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Company’s and the Group’s internal control systems, covering financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions during the year
under review.

In such review, the Board has considered factors such as changes since the last
review, scope and quality of management’s monitoring of risks; incidence of
significant control failings and identified weaknesses; and effectiveness relating
to financial reporting and compliance with the applicable laws and regulations
including the Listing Rules.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

Moore Stephens was re-appointed as the auditors of the Company at the annual
general meeting held on 30 August 2012. The remuneration in respect of audit and
related services provided by Moore Stephens to the Company and the Group during
the year ended 30 April 2013 is HK$890,000 (Remuneration in respect of audit
services for the year ended 30 April 2012: HK$600,000).

Delegation by the Board

The Board is responsible for decisions in relation to the overall strategic
development of the Company’s business. All directors have formal letters of
appointment setting out key terms and conditions relative to their appointment. Due
to the diversity and volume of the Group’s business, responsibility in relation to
the daily operations and execution of the strategic business plans are delegated to
management of the Group.

All committees, namely the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee,
have specific terms of reference clearly defining the authorities and responsibilities
of the respective committees. All committees are required by their terms
of reference to report to the Board in relation to their decisions, findings or
recommendations, and in certain specific situations, to seek the Board’s approval
before taking any actions.

The Board review, on a yearly basis, all delegations by the Board to different
committees to ensure that such delegations are appropriate and continue to be
beneficial to the Company as a whole.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

Insurance cover has been taken out for Directors’ and Officers’ Liability to provide
adequate cover, as determined by the Board, in respect of the Board members and
senior management members of the Company as from June 2010 and renewed
annually in June since 2011.

Shareholder Relations

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency and employs
a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information to its shareholders.
The commitment to fair disclosure and comprehensive and transparent reporting of
the Company’s activities can be reflected in many aspects.

In endeavouring to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders, the annual
general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange views with
the Board. All the directors of the Company make a special effort to attend the
Company’s general meetings so that they may answer any questions from the
shareholders.
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The Chairman was also actively involved in organising, and personally held the
annual general meeting in 2012 and all previous meetings of the Company in order
to ensure that shareholders’ views were communicated to the Board. A separate
resolution was proposed by the Chairman in respect of each separate issue at the
annual general meeting.

The proceedings of the annual general meeting are reviewed from time to time to
ensure the Company conforms to the best practices regarding corporate governance.
The annual general meeting circular, which is circulated to all shareholders at least
21 days prior to the holding of the annual general meeting, sets out the details in
relation to each resolution proposed, voting procedures (including procedures for
demanding and conducting a poll) and other relevant information. At the beginning
of the meeting, the Chairman indicates to the meeting the level of proxies lodged on
each resolution and the balance for and against such resolution. At the Company’s
2012 Annual General Meeting, all the resolutions were put to the vote by poll and
Tricor Tengis Limited, the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, was
engaged as scrutineer to ensure the votes were properly counted.

The Company also communicates to its shareholders through its annual, interim and
quarterly reports. The directors, company secretary or other appropriate members
of senior management also respond promptly to inquiries from shareholders and
investors.

Investor Relations

The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of corporate
information to shareholders and investors. The Company updates shareholders on its
latest business developments and financial performance through its annual, interim
and quarterly reports and notices, announcements and circulars. The Company’s
website (www.wls.com.hk) provides a communication platform to the public and
the shareholders.

To strengthen its relationship with investors, the Company regularly meets with
analysts and holds interviews with reporters and columnists of the press and other
economic journals.

During the year ended 30 April 2013, there had been no significant change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.



HEHGMRREARFAME ZF =41
= HARARE 2 AR R A AR B R o

FEEH

NN Bl B S S LY /N R N o (- PN
A~ TN ) T L) 4 ) A 2 2 26 0 I T
R GEA PR R 14~ 17 J 18 -

e 3 YTl

AEIMBEZEF - =FNA =+ HRFRE
B WRAEHCE 45 B S 2R -

HHOAERREBE T —-=FNA=1+H
IFEEZ R (HE - 4FNH=+HIHE
JE o AE) o

BEYE

REEZBEMER —F—ZFNA =T HE
il o Y Z AN ARSI 6,410,000 # 7T >
FEABZE T —ZAFWA =S HIMEE 58
MR R o AREFBEY) RN 2 BB
1% HOR G A IR MR 12 -

W3 ~ Wb Kk i

ALEWEY) 2 ~ 5T B s A N 2 B R
WO ER G BRI 13

—T =4 Annual Report 2013

HPE L
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 April 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities are set out in note 14, 17 and
18 respectively, to consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2013 are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 45.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year ended 30
April 2013 (year ended 30 April 2012: Nil).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The investment properties of the Group were revalued at 30 April 2013. The
increase in fair value of investment properties of HK$6,410,000 was credited to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 April 2013.
Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group during the year are
set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 30 April
2013 were as follows:

Itz Sy TR TR

2013 2012

T THIT

HKS$°000 HKS$°000

i iRirR Il Share premium 119,374 119,374
EE i Accumulated losses 17,107) (27,716)
102,267 91,658
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Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 32 of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium of the Company is available for paying distributions or dividends
to shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of
Association and provided that immediately following the distribution or dividend
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report are:
Executive directors

Dr. So Yu Shing (Chairman)

Mr. Kong Kam Wang (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca

Mr. Woo Siu Lun

Mr. So Wang Bon, Edward

Mr. Yu Yeung Hoi, Stephen

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Yeung Po Chin
Mr. Lam Kwok Wing
Dr. Fung Ka Shuen

In accordance with Articles 116 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr.
Woo Siu Lun, Mr. So Wang Bon, Edward and Mr. Yu Yeung Hoi, Stephen will
retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All the executive directors of the Company have each entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years. With the exception of the service
contract in respect of Mr. Yu Yeung Hoi, Stephen, one of the six executive directors,
all the above-mentioned service contracts are continuous until terminated by either
party giving to the other not less than three months’ notice in writing, or by payment
of three months’ salary in lieu of such notice. As for Mr. Yu Yeung Hoi, Stephen,
his service contract is continuous until terminated by either party giving to the other
not less than one month’s notice in writing, or by payment of one month’s salary in

lieu of such notice.

The non-executive directors (including the independent non-executive directors) have
no fixed term of office but are subject to the provision of retirement and rotation of

directors under the Articles of Association of the Company.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE
OPTIONS

At 30 April 2013, the interests of the directors and their associates of the Company
in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance
(the “SFO”) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or which were required under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on Growth Enterprises Market (the “GEM Listing Rules”)

to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Bt Z 5 5 Long positions in shares
a B (1)  Shares
EERLE L HAAFD
Number of ordinary shares held BATIRAZ B L
N & KGR Percentage of the
Personal Family issued share capital
HHREA Name of director interest interest of the Company
TR T L Dr. So Yu Shing 324,310,000 115,720,000 (fft5Ea) 39.30%
(note a)
ik 1+ Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca 115,720,000 324,310,000 (FftiEb) 39.30%

(note b)
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Number of ordinary shares held BATRAZ AL
6\ HE 25 EY3 Percentage of the
Personal Family issued share capital
WA Name of director interest interest of the Company
[ElY Mr. Woo Siu Lun 20,290,000 — 1.81%
VLR S Mr. Kong Kam Wang 7,145,000 - 0.64%
WREH A Mr. So Wang Bon, Edward 5,849,901 - 0.52%

B BRI (R AR ER) 2
[

Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca is the spouse of Dr. So Yu Shing, Chairman of
the Company.

BREFRSCE By SRR (AR AR E W) K
Ryt (RN FRATHS) 27T -

Mr. So Wang Bon, Edward, is the son of Dr. So Yu Shing, Chairman of
the Company and Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca, an executive director of the

Company.
BitaE Notes:
(a) % 115,720,000 B0 B B Wi g% & 145 - (a) The 115,720,000 shares are held by Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca.
(b)  #%324,310,000 B R RV R LA (b)  The 324,310,000 shares are held by Dr. So Yu Shing.
2) JEMHE (2)  Share options

AN TV RN 2 B ARG 8 2 R R 4R B
AR B R 33

Details of the share option scheme adopted by the Company are set out in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

R AR AL B TR B E I DL - The following table discloses details of movements in respect of the
Company’s share options during the year:

RZZ-Z& REB-ZH
AR EREN O FAKR EAGE MAZTA
itid NP PR R L) (itd AT Granted Lapsed  Exercised  FIARFTHE
EIEA ZHAM Exercisable period Exercise  Outstanding  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe Outstanding
Name of director ~ Date granted (both dates inclusive) price at 1.5.2012 year year year  at30.4.2013
oy
HKS
R 1 “FELEFANR HoZEAENA R A 0.60 2,800,000 - - — 2,800,000
Dr.So YuShing 8 October 2007 BZF—ENHFIH
15 April 2008 to 14 April 2014
e S 5 I N I v B e S e R 0.091 2,000,000 —(2,000,000) - -
17 October 2011 FoE-CHETHET—H
1 November 2011 to 31 October 2012
ZF-CHEF-RAR AZE-CZET-HITER 0.061 - 8,300,000 - - 8,300,000
9 November 2012 FR-NEF—AZ1+ZH
23 November 2012 to 22 November 2014
Rkt ZFZLETAAR H-Z%/FNA A 0.60 2,800,000 - - - 2,800,000
Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, 8 October 2007 E-F—NENA+NH
Rebecca 15 April 2008 to 14 April 2014
“F——4tA+ER moF—%t+—A—H 0.091 2,000,000 — (2,000,000) - -
17 October 2011 E-F-"HTA=1—H
1 November 2011 to 31 October 2012
“E-THF-ARE S MR- AS SN 0.061 - 8,300,000 - — 8,300,000
9 November 2012 BE-WEF—-AZ1ZH

23 November 2012 to 22 November 2014
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fA—-H  FRRH  FRER FERGE MASTH
FItE IR (H MK L ERN) fitid | WAL Granted Lapsed  Exercised AT
EHES Bl A Exercisable period Exercise ~ Outstanding  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe Outstanding
Name of director ~ Date granted (both dates inclusive) price at 1.5.2012 year year year  at 30.4.2013
T
HK$
BRBEE “FELETANR HoZEAENA+RHA 0.60 5,800,000 - - — 5,800,000
Mr. Woo SiuLun 8§ October 2007 BR—ENAMA
15 April 2008 to 14 April 2014
ZEFNELAZH H=ZF /AR 0217 1,400,000 - - — 1,400,000
2 May 2008 2F-MEF—-AAH
9 November 2008 to 8 November 2014
“F——FtAtER moF——4t—-A—H 0.091 2,000,000 — (2,000,000) - -
17 October 2011 i Sontics Sl s
1 November 2011 to 31 October 2012
B Sttt o ey I I NE R e ot 5 e By et 0.061 - 3,900,000 - ~ 3,900,000
9 November 2012 E-F-NEF—-AZT2H
23 November 2012 to 22 November 2014
pik:iy $istic S S DIV H-ZFEAFNA+HH 0.60 4,300,000 - - — 4300000
Mr. Kong Kam 8 October 2007 FCE-IENA LA
Wang 15 April 2008 to 14 April 2014
ZFENEHAZH HEFENEF—H LA 0217 2,900,000 - - — 2,900,000
2 May 2008 FZF—EF—ANH
9 November 2008 to 8 November 2014
“E-—HtATEE BmoF—Ft-A-H 0.091 2,000,000 —(2,000,000) - -
17 October 2011 Eim St o R
1 November 2011 to 31 October 2012
SRR mEF-CET-AZTEA 0.061 — 3,900,000 - — 3,900,000
9 November 2012 EoE-NET-AZ1ZH
23 November 2012 to 22 November 2014
i3 Vit ZEZZLETANR H-FE/ENAT LA 0.60 5,800,000 - - — 5,800,000
Mr. So Wang Bon, 8 October 2007 FZF—ENA LA
Edward 15 April 2008 to 14 April 2014
“EENFHAZA HoZFNFT—ANA 0217 1,400,000 - - — 1,400,000
2 May 2008 BCE-MET-AAR
9 November 2008 to 8 November 2014
“F—E+ATER ASF—EF-A-A 0.091 2,000,000 — (2,000,000) - -
17 October 2011 FE-THFAZF—H
1 November 2011 to 31 October 2012
ZE-CET-ARE mSE-CE-ASTER 0.061 ~ 3,900,000 - - 3,900,000
9 November 2012 EoF-WEF—A A
23 November 2012 to 22 November 2014
A “E——FtAtER moF—4t—A—H 0.091 2,000,000 — (2,000,000) - -
Mr. Yu Yueng Hoi, 17 October 2011 FE-CHEFHET—H
Stephen 1 November 2011 to 31 October 2012
B Sttt o ey DI E N e ot e By et | 0.061 — 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
9 November 2012 E-F-NEF—AZT2H

23 November 2012 to 22 November 2014
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REZ-"4 1
AR EREE ERER EREE WAZTR
gl PR U w] it | WAL Granted Lapsed  Exercised AT
EHES &AM Exercisable period Exercise ~ Outstanding  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe Outstanding
Name of director ~ Date granted (both dates inclusive) price at 1.5.2012 year year year  at 30.4.2013
oy
HKS
pZibia “E-CHE-AAR BmOF-CFEt-ACFZH 0.061 ~ 2,000,000 - — 2,000,000
Mr. Yeung Po Chin 9 November 2012 FE-WEF—-HZ1ZH
23 November 2012 to 22 November 2014
S “E-TET-ARE S BEE-TE-ATER 0061 ~ 2,000,000 - ~ 2,000,000
M. Lam Kwok Wing 9 November 2012 ECE-NEF-H AN
23 November 2012 to 22 November 2014
I ZE 1 “E-CHE-AAR S mOF-CFEt-AC1ZH 0.061 ~ 2,000,000 - — 2,000,000
Dr. Fung Ka Shuen 9 November 2012 BFE-WFEF—-HZ1ZH
23 November 2012 to 22 November 2014
39,200,000 36,300,000 (12,000,000) - 63,500,000
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Save as disclosed above, none of directors or their associates of the Company, had
any interests or short positions in shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations at 30 April 2013.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors Interests in Shares and Share
Options”, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate, and none of the directors or their spouses or children under the age
of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised
any such right during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 April 2013, the persons who have interests and short positions in shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO or have otherwise notified to the Company were as
follows:

By Z 57 AT Long positions in shares

Jr 35 i B H
FEBR A Name of substantial shareholders Number of ordinary shares held
TRl Dr. So Yu Shing 324,310,000
Rygisi b+ Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca 115,720,000
r R A A PR 7D (B RE 1) China Mineral United Holdings Limited (Note 1) 35,080,000
R E 2L (BfE2) Ms. Zhang Hailan (Note 2) 48,130,000
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Note:

1. China Mineral United Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, is 100% beneficially owned by Mr. Zheng Zhi. As such, Mr. Zheng Zhi is also
deemed to be the beneficial owner of 35,080,000 ordinary shares of the Company. Together
with the 48,130,000 ordinary shares of the Company held by Ms. Zhang Hailan, the spouse
of Mr. Zheng Zhi, Mr Zheng Zhi is deemed to have interest in a total of 83,210,000 ordinary
shares of the Company and hence a substantial shareholder of the Company.

2. 48,130,000 ordinary shares of the Company are held by Ms. Zhang Hailan. Together with
the 35,080,000 ordinary shares of the Company held by Mr. Zheng Zhi, the spouse of Ms.
Zhang Hailan, via China Mineral United Holdings Limited, Ms. Zhang Hailan is deemed to
have interests in a total of 83,210,000 ordinary shares of the Company and hence a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2013, the Company has not been notified of
any other person (other than a Director of the Company) having an interest or short
position in shares and underlying shares of the Company representing 5% or more
of the issued share capital of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive directors,
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors as independent.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 30 April 2013, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 79% of the
Group’s total turnover and the turnover attributable to the Group’s largest customer
accounted for approximately 49% of the Group’s total turnover.

The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
amounted for approximately 24% of the the Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director or a shareholder
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of
the Company’s share capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s five largest
customers.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to directors and
eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 30
April 2013.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors or the management shareholders of the Company or any of
their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any business
which competed or might compete with the business of the Group.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Company made charitable and other donations amounted to
HKS$63,000.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting of the

Company to re-appoint Messrs. Moore Stephens as independent auditors of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
So Yu Shing

Chairman

29 July 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

MOORE STEPHENS

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

905 Silvercord, Tower 2 %
30 Canton Road WY,

Tsimshatsui ﬁﬁ
Kowloon
Hong Kong ==

="
Tel : (852) 2375 3180 e

Fax : (852) 2375 3828 Al
E-mail : ms@ms.com.hk Bt
www.ms.com.hk i

To the Shareholders of WLS Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of WLS Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 45 to 131, which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 30 April 2013, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at 30 April 2013 and of the
Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Moore Stephens
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 July 2013
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e S TR TR
2013 2012
M 5E SR THIT
NOTES HK$°000 HKS$°000
(FE%1))
(restated)
CES Turnover 3 125,949 115,124
FHE RIA Cost of sales (106,741) (94,358)
Esvill Gross profit 19,208 20,766
FoAtuie A Other income 5 1,570 1,462
AR Operating expenses (32,771) (34,128)
a2 NTE Increase in fair value of investment
Ham properties 6,410 6,850
W R IR AR Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 6 13,345
Al AR Finance costs 6 (1,612) (1,863)
JRE VS 855 A ) B ] 2 il Impairment of amounts due from associates and
B O E jointly controlled entities (6,779) =
BRBLRT (R5tE) ik (Loss)/Profit before taxation (13,968) 6,432
BLIE Taxation 7 (661) (2,243)
AREELE (F48) i F (Loss)/Profit for the year 9 (14,629) 4,189
HABRBIAR A E A Other comprehensive income, net of tax - -
ZAELRAT (FE) A Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (14,629) 4,189
DU AN EHEAG (Bs48) W A (Loss)/Profit attributable to:
EN/NGIL ETE R DN Equity holders of the Company (14,219) 7,146
IE e e 2 Non-controlling interests (410) (2,957)
(14,629) 4,189
DI AEHE( G4 (B518), /WA © Total comprehensive (loss)/income attributable to:
PN ETE R DN Equity holders of the Company (14,219) 7,146
IE e e 2 Non-controlling interests 410) (2,957)
(14,629) 4,189
15} Dividend 10 - -
1.27 4l 0.64 Al
B (Ba48) / BLf — A (Loss)/Earnings per share — basic 11 (HK1.27 cent) ~ HKO0.64 cent
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SECSE SR SR
WH=+H WH=+H fiH—H
30 April 30 April 1 May
2013 2012 2011
BF 5 T#n THIT THIT
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
(H451) (H41)
(restated) (restated)
T B & A Non-current assets
Eid<LyES Investment properties 12 35,750 29,340 22,490
W~ R I Property, plant and equipment 13 30,641 25,285 29,731
A Goodwill 16 3,138 3,138 3,138
JJLAW“M ST Z WSS Interests in associates 17 - - -
A L[] 422 il £ 2 2 i i Interests in jointly controlled entities 18 - - -
69,529 57,763 55,359
i B Current assets
JRE B A5 ) Amounts due from associates 19 - 1,196 1,185
JREMSCH [R] 42 i £ S H Amounts due from jointly
controlled entities 19 - 5,481 5,220
JEUR P A #) TR #0H Amounts due from customers for
contract work 22 64,297 58,120 49,212
T& Inventories 20 876 686 1,488
TSI ~ Hed K Prepayments, deposits and
A 37 Bl other current assets 24 2,438 2,224 2,449
JRE MR &ﬁﬁﬁﬂéuﬁz I Trade and other receivables 21 57,072 63,824 68,292
JRE WA [ 4 3K T Retention monies receivable 23 6,717 7,864 5,597
JE AR 1] 6 T Current tax recoverable 62 13 94
HEHRERAT A7 Pledged bank deposit 25 680 680 680
SRATAR R B Bank balances and cash 25 7,221 7,199 1,419
139,363 147,287 135,636
i B £ 0 Current liabilities
JRE A B 5 A W) R Amount due to an associate 46 48
FAt B R — A Other loans — unsecured 27 5,341 5,461 5,904
JEAT &P A 4 TR #0H Amounts due to customers for
contract work 22 3,289 1,889 71
JIRE A B R LA B £ 3 T Trade and other payables 26 14,957 12,900 14,733
JRE AT P ] 48 T Retention monies payable 3,251 3,645 3,453
Fl L4 7 3% — R HA TR 4> Obligations under finance leases
— current portion 28 610 281 296
JEEAST B A I Current tax payable 1,133 822 =
SRAT R Bank loans 29 35,237 28,311 39,447
SRATIE L Bank overdrafts 29 13,968 7,500 11,338
77,786 60,855 75,290
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WH=+H WH=+H i H—H
30 April 30 April 1 May
2013 2012 2011
BF 5 T# THIT THIT
NOTES HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
(H451) (H41)
(restated) (restated)
Wi B & A Net current assets 61,577 86,432 60,346
AR A D B £ Total assets less current liabilities 131,106 144,195 115,705
I B £ Non-current liabilities
Pl 4 7 3% — JF BHA TR 2 Obligations under finance leases — 28 1,021 635 569
non-current portion
RIERL T A i Deferred tax liabilities 30 2,111 1,783 395
3,132 2,418 964
R Net assets 127,974 141,777 114,741
Je AR K fiti o Capital and reserves
il Share capital 31 11,198 11,198 9,989
Tt Reserves 123,036 136,579 107,795
EN/NGIL TR DN Equity attributable to equity holders
JRRE Aok i of the Company 134,234 147,777 117,784
I e i Non-controlling interests (6,260) (6,000) (3,043)
HE 45 4873 Total equity 127,974 141,777 114,741
HASF 131 HZ 45 G BRI —F — =41/ The consolidated financial statements on pages 45 to 131 were approved and
ZHIJUH RE R G HAR KA - AL authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 July 2013 and are signed
UNSRAW:E s on its behalf by:
BRIk R 1 JE i
SO YU SHING WOO SIU LUN
HH FH

Director Director
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BE T — =11 H=+HIFF/E For the year ended 30 April 2013

ARA IR g 54 A MR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
fR e/
(RiHEH) HY
TRCHERR G GMBER®  Retained RO i
BA bl AR Share it profits/ Non-
Share Share Merger option Warrant (Accumulated #%  controlling ot
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses) Total interests Total
T T T T T T T T T
HKS’000 HKS$000 HK$’000 HKS’000 HKS$000 HK$’000 HKS000 HKS$000 HK$’000
“F——HERA—H 1May2011
TR As previously reported 9.989 98,008 2022 8,834 120 (2,642) 116,531 (3,043) 113,488
SRS Change in accounting
—RHAEES  policy - Adoption of
RIS 1295 FH A HKAS 12 amendment
(B3 24) (note 2d) = = = = = 1,253 1253 = 1253
“F——& 1 May 2011 (restated)
fLA—H (E5) 9,989 98,008 2022 8,834 120 (1,389) 117,784 (3,043) 114,741
2RI R Profit and comprehensive
ESLION income for the year = = = = = 7,146 7,146 (2.957) 4,189
Tt Placing of shares 1,184 21,071 - - - - 22,255 - 22,255
ol Exercise of share options 2 295 - = - - 320 - 320
R g Grant of share options = - = m - = m - m
EREERERE  Share options lapsed
during the year - - - (1,439) - 1,439 - - -
HiBl R RAf  Transfer from warrant
HRZREER  reserve to retained profits - - - - (120) 120 - - -
RE-F——f 30 April 2012 and
MA=1Hk 1 May 2012 (restated)
—F-——f
HA—H (EF) 11,198 119,374 220 7,667 - 7,316 147,777 (6,000) 141,777
AUERRR Loss and comprehensive
ArTER loss for the year - - - - - (14,219) (14,219) (410) (14,629)
BTN Issue of warrants - - - - 200 - 200 - 200
bR g Grant of share options - - - 476 - - 476 - 476
FREHRIERS  Share options lapsed
during the year - - - (969) - 969 - - -
et e Capital contribution by
BAEH non-controlling interests - - - - - - - 150 150
Rk 30 April 2013
WA=+H 11,198 119,374 22 7,174 200 (5,934) 134,234 (6,260) 127974
[t 23 Notes:
(1) AT EB— 4RI H =4 H o A [H] 2 A5 55 Vs A (1) At 30 April 2013, the retained profits of the Group included accumulated losses of
A0 35 JRE A5 7S 4 [ 5 4 8 W) 2 BT ES 1R 143,000 HKS$143,000 (2012: accumulated losses of HK$143,000) attributable to associates of the
T (% ——4F © REHiE1H 143,000 7C) - Group.
2 MRF—-ZFNMA=1+H > REHZHEER (2) At 30 April 2013, the retained profits of the Group included accumulated losses of

I 0 955 IR AL A 2 (o) ] 4 o) £ 2 2 RSl Es 18
2,404,000%570 (= F— —4F © E51E1H2,404,000
WD) o

HK$2,404,000 (2012: accumulated losses of HK$2,404,000) attributable to jointly
controlled entities of the Group.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A B 2 2 D 45 A ) BB AT 2 A T
BURBURIEA MR —F T4 H =
2 4 AL A AR 24 ] B 3873 1
T2 24 -

% e 1 2 O o 15 0 440 B 2 524t 000
CETGE £ SV e e o

3)

“4)

pm - E— =1 =+ HFE/E  For the year ended 30 April 2013

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal amount
of the share capital issued by the Company in exchange for the nominal value for the
issued share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation
on 23 November 2001.

The share option reserve of the Group represents the fair value of share options granted
to the directors and employees of the Company at the relevant grant dates.
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BE T — =1y H=+HIFF/E For the year ended 30 April 2013

e S TR TR
2013 2012
Tt AR
HK$°000 HK$°000
(%))
(restated)
JEE-E 03 Operating activities
BRBiLRT (R5tE) i (Loss)/profit before taxation (13,968) 6,432
T 51 TEAE AR Adjustments for:
FEIRA Interest income 10) (30)
il AR Finance costs 1,612 1,863
Pres Ky Depreciation and amortisation 4,194 4,041
EWEE ~ R I R Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (6) (13,345)
82 W E Write down of inventories - 692
JRE A B85 ) e ] 42 Impairment of amounts due from an associate and a jointly
A ZHE I 2 i (H controlled entity 6,779 =
JRE A B8 A ) e R[] 4 Write back of amounts due to an associate and a jointly
A SERIE 2 iR controlled entity 94) =
SRR A Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 10,441 8,317
G & 4 TR P 3E 2 iR Write off of amounts due from customers for contract work 3,011 10,000
BN T E SN Increase in fair value of investment properties (6,410) (6,850)
TR B BERAEZ A T(E Fair value of share options granted to employees 476 272
A S B i R Operating cash flows before movements
Bl m sy in working capital 6,025 11,392
JRE g 2 LR IE A Increase in amount due from an associate 11 (11)
JREMSCH [R] 42 ] £ S H Increase in amounts due from jointly
Hm controlled entities 32) (261)
FEWCE P & &) TR RIE Increase in amounts due from
Hm customers for contract work (9,189) (18,908)
175 (B b (Increase)/decrease in inventories (190) 110
TR ~ Hedr L HoAth (Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits and
LB (W), b other current assets (64) 225
JFRE A e 5 5 LA B WA T Increase in trade and
Hm other receivables (3,689) (3,849)
JRE M f ] 4 BRI B (B ) Decrease/(increase) in retention monies receivable 1,147 (2,267)
JEA Wi 2 TR IE B D Decrease in amounts due to an associate (10) 2)
JEAT & P & &) TR RIE Increase in amounts due to customers
Ham for contract work 1,400 1,818
JIRE A B 5 LA B £ 3 T Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 2,057 (1,833)
Hm,/ Geirb)
JEEAH R [ £ 3K (ob) B (Decrease)/increase in retention monies payable (393) 192
W Bl Cash used in operations (2,949) (13,394)
(BHAH) AR FIATBE Hong Kong Profits Tax (paid)/refunded (72) 49
£ 85 P B Net cash used in operating activities (3,021) (13,345)
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=t SEV I

2013 2012
T#n T
HK$’000 HK$°000
(F41)
(restated)
& EW Investing activities
EAEDS Interest received 10 30
TEE W2 - WE Mkt Purchase of property, plant and equipment (8,310) (6,851)
WEYZE - RE ki T A3 3KIH  Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 6 21,015
WHEREH(R), BB 4&EH  Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (8,294) 14,194
Al SE Financing activities
CATFLE Interest paid (1,505) (1,801)
EA B LA 2 Finance lease charges paid 107) (62)
B SR T R New bank loans raised 48,063 36,220
TE R ERAT R K Repayment of bank loans (41,137) (47,356)
B 7 Pl AR 4 73S Repayment of obligations under finance leases (525) (364)
AT (o B PR A Exercise of share options - 320
J 453 T B 4 N AR Net proceeds on placing of shares - 22,255
HoAth BB R AR Repayment of other loans (510) (443)
Hofth B AR Proceeds from advance of other loans 390 -
AT RB RS 2 Ui bR Receipt on issue of warrants 200 =
AR E Rl R 2 B Net cash generated from financing activities 4,869 8,769
HE KRB &EMER Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
(W), B cash equivalents (6,446) 9,618
AR Z B4 B Bl & A H Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 301) (9,919)
AERZBIE R B EFEEH Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (6,747) (301)
ERZBERBEEFHEHS M Analysis of cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
SRATHS B M Bl 4 Bank balances and cash 7,221 7,199
HATIE L Bank overdrafts (13,968) (7,500)

(6,747) (301)
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=t SEV I

2013 2012
b Tt T
NOTES HK$°000 HK$°000
JEVH B & A Non-current assets
W& A F 2 & Investments in subsidiaries 14 5 5
B Current assets
JRE T B8 2 R I Amounts due from subsidiaries 15 121,694 108,262
JRES— Bt 2 w1 i Amount due from jointly controlled entity
L[] 422 il > SR I of a subsidiary 19 - 3,115
TAMTHIE ~ $ie s M HAhRBI &% Prepayments, deposits and other current assets 24 171 171
JE AR [ 3 T Current tax recoverable 46 =
HRAT AR M Hl 4 Bank balances and cash 25 2,011 2,011
123,922 113,559
i B £ 0 Current liabilities
JREASY 6 g A ) R I Amounts due to subsidiaries 15 2,442 2,441
R A 2 T R A B £ 3 T Trade and other payables 26 646 600
3,088 3,041
i) A A Net current assets 120,834 110,518
8 A A Total net assets 120,839 110,523
Je AR B fiti ol Capital and reserves
Jie A Share capital 31 11,198 11,198
fifi s Reserves 32 109,641 99,325
HE £ J0H Total equity 120,839 110,523
BRI w1k bk
SO YU SHING WOO SIU LUN
FFE FHE

Director Director
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GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
(the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information in the

annual report.

The principal activities of the Group are the provision of scaffolding and
fitting and services, management contracting services, and other services for

construction and buildings work.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars

(“HKS$”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which include all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

b) Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except for certain investment properties which are measured at fair

values.

The principal accounting policies and methods of computation used in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 April
2013 are consistent with those adopted in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2012, except for the adoption
of the new and revised HKFRSs as explained in ¢) and change in accounting

policy in d) below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

¢) Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
April 2013, the Group has applied, for the first time, the following amendment
to standards issued by the HKICPA.

HKAS 12 Amendment Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying

Assets

HKFRS 1 Amendment Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of

Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters

HKFRS 7 Amendment Disclosures: Transfers of Financial Assets

Except for the impacts of the revised HKFRSs described below, the application
of the other revised HKFRS had no effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the current or prior accounting periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
d) Change in accounting policy

During the current year, the Group has applied the amendment to HKAS
12 “Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets”. Under the amendment,
investment properties that are measured using the fair value model in
accordance with HKAS 40 “Investment Property” are presumed to be recovered
through sale for the purpose of measuring deferred taxes unless the presumption

is rebutted.

In December 2010, the HKICPA amended HKAS 12, “Income Taxes”, to
introduce an exception to the principle for the measurement of deferred tax
assets or liabilities arising on an investment property measured at fair value.
HKAS 12 requires an entity to measure the deferred tax relating to an asset
depending on whether the entity expects to recover the carrying amount of the
asset through use or sale. The amendment introduces a rebuttable presumption
that an investment property measured at fair value is recovered entirely by sale.
The amendment is applicable retrospectively to annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2012 with early adoption permitted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

d) Change in accounting policy (Continued)

The Group has adopted this amendment retrospectively for the financial year

ended 30 April 2013.

The Group has investment properties measured at their fair values totalling
HK$29,340,000 as of 1 May 2012. As required by the amendment, the Group
has re-measured the deferred tax relating to certain investment properties
according to the tax consequence on the presumption that they are recovered
entirely by sale retrospectively. The comparative figures have been restated to

reflect the change in accounting policy, as summarised below:

AR BRI R B Impact on results for the year
B AR B S
2013 2012
T THIT
HK$’000 HK$°000
A5 B S I8 Decrease in income tax expense 1,243 1,949
AR RATH (FE1H) Decrease in (loss)/increase in profit and total comprehensive
WM AT (loss)/income for the year 1,243 1,949
D NS W e iy Decrease in (loss)/increase in profit for the
(k548 Wb s Rl - year attributable to:
EN/NGIL S TEEZ DN Equity holders of the Company 1,243 1,949
I I A Non-controlling interests - -
1,243 1,949
DA N A A 4 i A A T Decrease in (loss)/increase in profit and total
(E18) /W Fl K 21 (548 - comprehensive (loss)/income attributable to:
EN/NEIL TR DN Equity holders of the Company 1,243 1,949
I JE e i Non-controlling interests - =

1,243 1,949
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2. FEEEFHEBOR @) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
d) EEFBOREE) (@) d) Change in accounting policy (Continued)
HREIEA (E18) B 2 Impact on basic (loss)/earnings per share

St —E A
2013 2012

A LA 2 ) 34 Increase in basic earnings per share 0.11 ¥4 0.17 #A1ll
HKO.11 cent HKO.17 cent

S} i A B HE 2 Impact on net assets and equity as at 1 May 2011
(R =F——%0H—H)

Rt BURAETH)
KR RLHTHR S Change in
As previously accounting K 5
reported policy As restated
T T T#T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
WRACF TE B 55 S e Deferred tax liabilities and impact on net assets
FHZ 2 1,648 (1,253) 395
LV Z V&) Accumulated losses and impact on equity

2 (2,642) 1,253 (1,389)
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2. FEEEFHEBOR @) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
d) st BUREE) () d) Change in accounting policy (Continued)
S T e i > Impact on net assets and equity as at 30 April 2012

(R=F—Z4FNHA=1H)

Rt BURAET)
KERLHTHRE Change in
As previously accounting 5
reported policy As restated
T T T#T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS’ 000
ARACF TE B 55 S B e Deferred tax liabilities and impact on net assets
TFHEZ 2 4,985 (3,202) 1,783
o B Vi A B 2 T Retained profits and impact on equity
bs 7 4,114 3,202 7,316
S A R 2 Impact on net assets and equity as at 30 April 2013

(R=F—=4EMA=1H)

Gt EORAEE)
Change in
accounting policy
Tt
HK$°000
R AE R TE B D> K Decrease in deferred tax liabilities and increase in net assets
B R E R 4,445
2t M Decrease in accumulated losses and increase in equity

e 4:445
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
e) Significant judgements and estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the directors of the Company to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The directors have considered the development, selection and disclosure of the
Group’s critical accounting policies and estimates.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, the directors have
made the following judgements which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue recognition

When a contract is judged to be a construction contract, revenue is recognised
using the percentage of completion method. The percentage of completion
method is made by reference to the stage of completion of projects determined
based on the proportion of contract costs incurred to date and the estimated
costs to complete.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

e)

Significant judgements and estimates (Continued)

Estimates and assumptions

@

(ii)

(iii)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the
value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 30 April 2013, the carrying amount of goodwill
was HK$3,138,000. Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in note 16.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes allowances for bad and doubtful debts when there is
objective evidence that receivables balances are impaired. The balances
of the receivables are based on the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the effective rate computed at initial recognition.
The directors have exercised a considerable amount of judgement in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each customer.
If the financial conditions of customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowance may be required.

Revaluation of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value, with changes in
fair values being recognised in profit or loss in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. The Group engaged independent valuation
specialists to determine fair value as at 30 April 2013. The valuer used a
valuation technique based on a discounted cash flow model as there is a

lack of comparable market data because of the location of the properties.

The determined fair value of the investment properties is most sensitive

to the estimated yield as well as the long term vacancy rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
e) Significant judgements and estimates (Continued)
(iv)  Share-based payments

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at
the date at which they are granted. Estimating fair value for share-
based payments requires determining the most appropriate valuation
model for a grant of equity instruments, which is dependent on the terms
and conditions of the grant. This also requires determining the most
appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of
the option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about
them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for

share-based payments are disclosed in note 33.
(v)  Construction contracts

The Group’s profit or loss arising from construction contracts is
determined by reference to the latest available budgets of individual
construction contract prepared by the Group and based on management’s
best estimates and judgements. Provision is made for foreseeable losses

as soon as they are anticipated by management.
f) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of

the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 30 April each year.

Total comprehensive income and expenses of a subsidiary is attributed to the
owners of the company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results

in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair
value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
incurred. At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are generally recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date.

61



62

SEFEIERR AR AT WLS Holdings Limited

Ao 17 S5 1 0 B ik

2. FEEFHBOR @)
) HEWRHEER @)

R T AR 2 AR B O 2 AT P
R B A AU A A I D B (T
) 2O TE KRR H TR 2 ATl ol T
PR 2 B R WO B 2 iR R 22 R R o ik
TE EBT RPAG AR - BT 2 W]l Pl 2 T B AR Af
Z BRSO F 2 T R A T e AR -
WSC S 7 2 AR I 2 P A i < R L B WA R 1
A Bl I 2 4R 2 O F(E (IN) Z 58D
it 2 FERAE Ty el (B S i 2 B IR TR A7 2 T
i 4R i R P R

Ji&s B AT MR i LA U R RN T L A HK
B 81 7 i 0 8 T T (L FF SR i T W) 25 4
DN VB BRI 2 PR £ A B A s ] il )
FH 2 O MRS R L GET R o FHE NP
BIZE 5 1 84

AF TN L WSO B o 4 R T A ) SE AR A WO A 2K
F A0 i 28 o B Ak H 0k Gl ) REA
R W R 2 H e o

A T B ST R 2 D S R R A
B T T B RO B A AR I HL A A B
WRPTE B .

IR L ESE P Pae YA L RS Y & ]
A IR H IRy T LA

S EF B 2 ) 1 S 2 P HEE 4 45 A 42 T Je 2 ] 3
BT E Tl R o AR B A 2 S R

32

fa °

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

f) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event
of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on

a transaction-by-transaction basis.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated profit or loss in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition or up to the

effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by

other members of the Group.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances between group

enterprises are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries represent the interests of outside
shareholders not held by the Group in the results and net assets of the Group’s

subsidiaries.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
g) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment include land and buildings. Property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the term of the lease

Plant and machinery 20%
Metal tubes and catwalks 10%
Gondolas over 9 years
Gondolas and related equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives
on the same basis as owned assets or the term of the relevant lease, whichever

is shorter.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income in the year in which the item is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

h) Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured initially at cost
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of

the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties
are included in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property
are recognised in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income in the year of the retirement or disposal.

i) Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-controlled entity, in
which the Group has a long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity

voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of the profit or loss and of changes in equity of the
associate, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interest that, in substance, forms part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses

are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
j)  Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the company, directly or indirectly,
controls more than half of its voting power or issued share capital or controls
the composition of its board of directors; or over which the company has a
contractual right to exercise a dominant influence with respect to that entity’s

financial and operating policies.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated

at cost less any impairment losses.
k) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value

of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(ii) the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable

assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as a gain on a

bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill arising
on a business combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups
of cash generating units, that is expected to benefit for the synergies of the

combination and is tested annually for impairment.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is

expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
k) Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is indication that the unit
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to the other
assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each assets
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or
loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. An impairment

loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any attributable amount
of purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on

disposal.
I)  Jointly controlled entities

Jointly controlled entities arrangements which involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the economic activity

of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in jointly controlled
entities are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost as
adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and of changes in equity of the jointly controlled entities, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled
entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a
liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that jointly controlled

entity.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the Group,
unrealised profits or losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the jointly controlled entity, except to the extent that unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case, the full

amount of losses is recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
m) Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodiwll

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing
for a non-financial asset is required other than inventories, financial assets,
investment properties and goodwill, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the value in use of the
asset or cash-generating unit to which it belongs and its fair value less costs to
sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that

revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of reporting period as to whether there is
any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount
is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset, other
than goodwill, is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such impairment loss is credited to profit or
loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the

relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

n) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is

calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Net realiable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.

o) Financial instruments

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets include deposits, trade and other receivables,
retention monies receivables, pledged bank deposit, bank balances and cash.

Financial assets are recognised on the trade date.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Loans and
receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.
Any changes in their value are recognised in profit or loss in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets expire or are transferred and substantially all of the

risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred.

An assessment for impairment is undertaken at least at the end of each reporting
period, whether or not there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. Impairment loss on loans and receivables
is recognised when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect all the amounts due to it in accordance with the original terms of the
receivables. The amount of the impairment loss is determined as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future

cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
0) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

During the year ended 30 April 2013, the Group entered into a foreign currency
forward contract which is considered to be a derivative contract giving rise to
a financial asset. Derivative contracts are accounted for at fair value through
profit or loss and initially recognised at fair value when the contracts are entered
into. Subsequent changes in fair value at the end of each reporting period are
recognised in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.
Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include other loans, trade and other payables,
retention monies payable, obligations under finance leases, bank loans and
overdrafts. Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party

to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, net of transactions
costs incurred and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation

specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
p) Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time is included
in finance costs in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(1))

ii)

iii)

Leased assets

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to the
Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are

classified as operating leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, the
amounts representing the fair value of the leased assets, or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments of such assets, are included
in property, plant and equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under finance lease.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the cost of assets over
the term of the relevant leases or, where it is likely the Group will obtain
ownership of the assets, the life of the assets. Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set out as
below. Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to
profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
over the period of the leases so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period. Contingent rentals, if any, are charged to profit
or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the

accounting period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals, if any, are charged to profit or loss
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the accounting

period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
r) Foreign currencies

The functional currency and the presentation currency of the Company is the
Hong Kong dollar. Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded using
the functional currency rates ruling at the date of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. All differences are taken to profit or loss in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when

the fair value was determined.

The functional currency of overseas subsidiaries are currencies other than the
Hong Kong dollar. At the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into the presentation currency of the Company
at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period, and their
statements of comprehensive income are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are included in exchange reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity,
the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries are translated into the Hong Kong dollar at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong

Kong dollar at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

s) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.

Where the outcome of a construction and buildings maintenance contract can
be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting period, as
measured by the proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to
date relative to the estimated total contract costs. Variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that the amounts can

be measured reliably and their receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction and buildings maintenance contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of
contract costs incurred that probably will be recoverable. Contract costs are

recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue,

the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as an amount due from
customers for contract work. For contracts where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the
surplus is shown as an amount due to customers for contract work. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position, as a liability, as advances received. Amounts
billed for work performed but not yet paid by the customer are included in the

consolidated statement of financial position under trade and other receivables.

Sales of gondolas are recognised when title passes to customers.

Provision of services revenue is recognised when services are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference

to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which

is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the

expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
t)  Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period in

which they are incurred.

u) Retirement benefit costs

i) Short term employee benefits and contribution to defined contribution

plan

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes for those employees who are eligible to participate.
Contributions are charged to profit or loss in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as they are paid/become payable in accordance

with the rules of the scheme.
ii)  Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees of the Company and vested prior to

1 May 2005

The Group did not recognise the financial effect of these share options
until they were exercised. Upon the exercise of the share options, the
resulting shares issued are recorded as additional share capital at the
nominal value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share
over the nominal value of the shares is recorded in the share premium
account. Options which lapsed or cancelled prior to their exercise date

are removed from the register of outstanding options.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

u) Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

Share options granted to employees of the Company on or after 1 May
2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight
line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity

(share option reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option reserve

will be transferred to retained profits.

v) Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from profit as reported in profit of loss in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill
or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
v)  Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the

temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and it is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss in the statement of
comprehensive income, except when it relates to other comprehensive items, in
which case the deferred tax is dealt with in the consolidated statement of other

comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the group intends to settle its current

tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets
for investment properties that are measured using the fair value model in
accordance with HKAS 40 “Investment Property”, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model of the group whose
business objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather than through sale. If
the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for
such investment properties are measured in accordance with the above general
principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected manner as to how the

properties will be recovered).

75



76

EREZER AR AT WLS Holdings Limited

s £ U 0 B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. FEEFFBOR @)

w) BERB&EFEEH

iRl ERERNS > e kBESHEH
5 Al A BRI 4 SRR B H A =
A8 7 P et 4000 o e A U 2 ZE A R
=0 A RER G SRAT R -

x) BEAL

(@)  MiELLR AL ARZA LS A 28
SAEMARE : —

() PERIESERE R AL
(i) BAREEAEREE K

(i) A4S S I AR AR [ BE S | Y A
G o

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

w) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent short term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which were within three months
of maturity when acquired, less advances from banks repayable within three

months from the date of the advance.

x) Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the

Group if that person:-
(1) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel of the Group or the

Group’s parent.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions

applies: —

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group.

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other

entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an

associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of

employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in

(a).

(vii) A person identified in note 2 (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity).
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3. HEH# TURNOVER
AL
Group
e Sy X - St
2013 2012
T T
HK$’000 HK$°000
L RS )% ik TARAR AL L Contract revenue in respect of construction and buildings
N RES 2 A i AR work for the provision of
— 2R 5 E AR s — scaffolding services 117,371 105,278
—KEHEAE IR — fitting out services 2,341 2,199
EHA KRS Management contracting services 55 80
MM LAES - PhfsfH e e Gondolas, parapet railings and access equipment
HENERR T 2 e JE RAEAE IR TS installation and maintenance services 6,182 7,567
125,949 115,124
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

(A) Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into three
operating divisions: (i) scaffolding and fitting out services for construction
and buildings work, (il) management contracting services for construction
and buildings work, and (iii) gondolas, parapet railings and access equipment

2 RAEAE RS -

A BARZAE S 2 S BUE RIS AN -

installation and maintenance services.

Segment information about these businesses is presented below.

e ¥ 2013
HAEmRasRZ R THE PROFIT OR LOSS IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
m LIES
19 435 22
R R TR X A 2%
s T Ak TR M2 &ZHER
PE AL S PEALE B A IR %5
TR e 1 R T RIS Gondolas,
Scaffolding and Management parapet railings
fitting out contracting and access
services for services for equipment
construction construction installation and
and buildings  and buildings maintenance e
work work services Consolidated
Tt Tt Tt Tt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
& REVENUE
FLES PN Total external sales 119,712 55 6,182 125,949
Zig B3 SEGMENT RESULTS
EF(EH) Group profit/(loss) 17,420 (71) 1,859 19,208
e Operating expenses (35,566) 178) (4,747) (40,491)
(18,146) (249) (2,888) (21,283)
HAthlfe A Other income 1,570
WEYWEZ N THE Increase in fair value of

e investment properties 6,410
HEWZE - FE Gain on disposal of property,

Y& e plant and equipment 6
RO L& £ Unallocated operating expenses (671)
Rt i s 4R Loss before taxation (13,968)
BiIE Taxation (661)
A4 N i 1R Loss for the year (14,629)
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4. FER @)

(A) 258w

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(A) Business segments (Continued)

SRR 2013
&R BB IR Dtk CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
M TS
i e 4 B2
FHEER MR B CAE 15 2%
j R TR M2z EZEK
PEOCH AR 5 PR B A5 M 75
RS 4 16 R %5 BRI B Gondolas,
Scaffolding and  Management parapet railings
fitting out contracting and access
services for services for equipment
construction construction installation and
and buildings  and buildings  maintenance BRE
work work services Consolidated
Tt Tt R Tt
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
g3 ASSETS
I REE Segment assets 132,342 14,400 9,713 156,455
AW N R 2 g Interest in associates _
AJL[E P 2 Interests in jointly
HE 5 controlled entities -
JRE SR 8 A W) I Amount due from associates -
JRE WS e ] 428 ) £ 2 Amounts due from jointly
A controlled entities -
oA A3 P & Other unallocated assets 52,437
A EEAE Consolidated total assets 208,892
=L LIABILITIES
Pag s N=Li Segment liabilities 18,369 140 2,116 20,625
HoAth A3 e B 15 Other unallocated liabilities 60,293
LB A B Consolidated total liabilities 80,918
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(A) Business segments (Continued)

e S o 2013
Hfth & B} OTHER INFORMATION
RIS
BREER BEER DR
R BETR  REHMgE
SOEMAR et T A W
TR HE 05 s & HR Gondolas,
Scaffolding and Management  parapet railings
fitting out contracting and access
services for services for equipment
construction construction  installation and
and buildings  and buildings maintenance A bR
work work services Unallocated Consolidated
Tt T T# T# Tt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000
BB Capital expenditure 8,534 - 1,009 7 9,550
Ei-YE i Depreciation and amortisation 3,552 - 328 314 4,194
SRR Bad and doubtful debts 10,350 - 3,102 - 13,452
T A 7 ]2 Impairment of amounts due from
L[] P A R Z W associates and
jointly controlled entities 2,385 117 - 4,277 6,779
BEWEZ N TER Increase in fair value of
investment properties - - - 6,410 6,410
HEE ~ BiE i 2 1E  Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 6 - - - 6
FEEFER Information about major customers

B 1 W 44 7 T AR B v LR AR LA B RS R
MRS LA e i il TAE &~ B A S 5 A i 4
B 2 B e KA MBS % 5 2 Wi A AR 4 T 280l
%1 4 60% ©

Revenue from two customers of scaffolding and fitting out services for
construction and building work together with gondolas, parapet railings
and access equipment installation and maintenance services represent

approximately 60% of the Group’s total revenue.
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4. HEER @) SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(A) EH 5 (80

(A) Business segments (Continued)

e St 2012
ERa s R H THE PROFIT OR LOSS IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mfLAER -

s Fi A e

TR MR X e A1 25

M T B TR M2 %% K&

PEOCAZ B LB AEAE AR 25

B 05 IR a5 B RIRHE Gondolas,

Scaffolding and  Management parapet railings

fitting out contracting and access

services for services for equipment

construction construction installation and
and buildings  and buildings maintenance e
work work services Consolidated
Tt R Tt Tt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
(&%)
(Restated)
W s REVENUE
KBS Total external sales 107,477 80 7,567 115,124
Vig B3 SEGMENT RESULTS
EF(EH8) Group profit/(loss) 21,943 (603) (574) 20,766
e Operating expenses (16,800) (1,302) (10,749) (28,851)
5,143 (1,905) (11,323) (8,085)
A A Other income 1,462
WEWEZ N THE Increase in fair value of

il investment properties 6,850
B -~ B R Gain on disposal of property,

Y& e plant and equipment 13,345
RO 32 Unallocated operating expenses (7,140)
Wi i ¥ Profit before taxation 6,432
FiIH Taxation (2,243)
AR AT JBE 1A 36 Profit for the year 4,189
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(A) Business segments (Continued)
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R4 2012
&R BB IR Dtk CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
m TAES
I 458 0 2%
R R MR B CAE 15 2%
j R TR M2 ZHR
TN AL B A IR 75
RS 4 16 R %5 BRI B Gondolas,
Scaffolding and  Management parapet railings
fitting out contracting and access
services for services for equipment
construction construction installation and
and buildings  and buildings  maintenance BRE
work work services  Consolidated
Tt Tt R Tt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
(Restated)
(HE7)
B ASSETS
I REE Segment assets 126,879 14,405 10,905 152,189
TR A T 2 fE A Interest in associates _
AJL[E P 2 Interests in jointly
HE £ controlled entities =
JRE VSR 85 A W) I Amounts due from associates 1,196
JRE WS e ] 428 ) £ 2 Amounts due from jointly
HIH controlled entities 5,481
oA R A3 P & Other unallocated assets 46,184
SEAEEAE Consolidated total assets 205,050
=L LIABILITIES
A Segment liabilities 15,512 172 1,646 17,330
HoAth A T B 15 Other unallocated liabilities 45,943
LEA A B Consolidated total liabilities 63,273
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4. REF @0 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(A) EH 5 (80 (A) Business segments (Continued)
I St 2012
Hfth & B} OTHER INFORMATION
RIS
BREER BEER DR
R BETR  REHMgE
SRR R et T A W
TR HE 05 s & HR Gondolas,
Scaffolding and Management  parapet railings
fitting out contracting and access
services for services for equipment
construction construction  installation and
and buildings  and buildings maintenance A bR
work work services Unallocated Consolidated
T T T Tt T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
(FE5)
(Restated)
EARPH S Capital expenditure 5975 = 797 493 7,265
Ei-YE i Depreciation and amortisation 3,257 3 313 468 4,041
AR Bad and doubtful debts 2,067 6,210 10,040 - 18,317
BB N TER Increase in fair value of
investment properties - - - 6,850 6,850
B ~ BiE i 2 10E  Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 9 - - 13,336 13,345
FEE R ER Information about major customers

A T 44 B AR N i AR R (A 2R A A 2 Revenue from two customers of scaffolding and fitting out services for
BEIRFS LA B TAES ~ [ i g 5 e 41 5 construction and building work together with gondolas, parapet railings
M2z 228 R B RIS & P 2 U 35 4k s 45 B 4810k and access equipment installation and maintenance services represent
5 #] 64% o approximately 64% of the Group’s total revenue.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(B) Geographical segments

The Group operates with customers situated in Hong Kong and Macau. The

following table provides an analysis of the revenue, carrying amounts of

ARSI segment assets and capital expenditure by geographical markets:—
SR A R 4 M Z BT X
e Carrying amount of Capital expenditure
Revenue segment assets incurred during the year
—F-=E SF-CF ZF-ZF R ZF = —EF -
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
T T Tikx T Tt T
HK$°000 HKS$000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
i Hong Kong 126,249 112,704 140,832 124,678 9,550 7,265
{Fs (300) 2,420 15,623 27,511 - -
125,949 115,124 156,455 152,189 9,550 7,265
5. HAtbBA OTHER INCOME
A H
Group
e S e St
2013 2012
F#n THIT
HK$’000 HK$°000
AN Sl 4 > TRAR Gain on foreign exchange, net 17 339
FLE YA Interest income 10 30
AU > FIBRZE S Rental income, net of outgoings of nil 899 834
LA Sundry income 328 259
SRS AR ] Reversal of bad debts 22 =
At JREAS R T A Write back of other payable 200 =
JREAST R BB A ) B ] 42 il Write back of amounts due to an associate and
EHE A AR IE MR a jointly controlled entity 94 =
1,570 1,462
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6. MLE A

FINANCE COSTS

AL
Group
2013 2012
T#x T
HK$’000 HK$°000
SRAT RS Interest on bank loans
— ZEIN AR N A B R — wholly repayable within five years 953 1,810
— JHIN HARAR R — wholly repayable beyond five years 169 182
HoA B S Interest on other loans 393 324
Al A 4 2R 2 RIS, Interest on obligations under finance leases 107 62
1,622 2378
W EREAZ BEAL Less: Amount capitalised to construction
JREA <52 BH contracts (10) (515)
1,612 1,863
7. BiAE TAXATION
P32 3
Group
B4R —E AR
2013 2012
T T
HK$’000 HK$°000
(E%1))
(Restated)
Pl TE ELHE - Taxation comprises:
TS BE Hong Kong Profits Tax
AR Current year 28 532
SEHTAFE EE R A 2 Underprovision in prior years 305 323
333 855
IEFEBLIE (FfEE30) Deferred tax (Note 30)
RARJE Current year 328 1,388
661 2,243

T s I A5 B0 AR 45 AT B 7 v A 1 SR B Ui A1) A
16.5% Z B R4 (B — —4F © 16.5%) ©

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made at the rate of 16.5% on
the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year (2012:
16.5%).
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consolidated statement of comprehensive income:—

No Macau Complementary Tax has been provided as the Group had no

assessable profits subject to such tax during the year (2012: Nil).

(Loss)/profit before taxation is reconciled to taxation in profit or loss in the

A4 1]
Group
e S B S
2013 2012
T#x T
HK$’000 HKS$’000
(FE%1))
(Restated)

KRB A (k518 s Al (Loss)/profit before taxation (13,968) 6,432
A ] ) A [ ] 2 Tax at tax rate applicable in the relevant jurisdictions (1,760) 1,431
VNGIE v Tax effect of expenses not deductible for

B R 28 tax purpose 1,385 2,017
DHE B Z WA Z B 5% %88 Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (1,097) (3,329)
KT HERR 2 B2 Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 2,132 1,144

25 5 288
B R AT AR RS (EFTRL) Tax effect of utilisation of (deductible)/taxable temporary

JRE SRR I 2 Rl 2 Bl s h 2 differences previously not recognised (123) 894
6y 4t ARSI R R 2 B TE S 4R Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised - (470)
JERITAF FE A 2 Under provision in prior years 305 323
HoAth Others 181) 233
BiIE Taxation 661 2,243
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8. #HINIEEME DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(a) EFME (a) Directors’ emoluments
A 42 Group
Rt L% BEA  ADE  GhhE R
BRlkR Lai kBt Kong  SoWang Yu Yeung Hi  B%k B Lam
SoYu Yuen Mei, Woo Kam Bon, Hoi, Tung Fung  Yeung Kwok it

Shing ~ Rebecca  SiuLun Wang  Edward  Stephen Wah KaShuen  Po Chin Wing Total
T#n  T#x TEx  T#x  TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx TEx TEx
HKS$000 HK$°000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS$000

i 2013
%3 Fee - - - - - - - 88 8 8 264
HA - Other emoluments:
HERIMAA  Salaries and other benefits 286 1440 536 909 570 360 - - - - 664
RIRRAFTEIER  Contribution to retirements
benefits schemes 15 15 15 15 15 15 - - - - 90
WA 7 I Equity-settled share option
&R expenses 88 88 4 4 4 n - n 2 2 386
FillEo Total emoluments 2929 1,543 593 966 627 396 - 109 109 109 7,381
Rtk A% KER ARG AFhE MR
R Lai kB Kong  SoWang YuYeung Hi  B%% 5 Lam
SoYu  Yuen Mei, Woo Kam Bon, Hoi, Tung Fung Yeung Kwok il
Shing  Rebecca  SiuLun Wang  Edward  Stephen Wah  KaShuen  PoChin Wing Total
T#r  Tc T#x  Tx  TEx  Tx  TEx  TEx  TEx T TErx
HKS’000  HKS’000 HKS’000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000  HKS$000
e S 2012
1id Fee - - - - - - 67 80 80 80 307
Tt - Other emoluments:
MR Salaries and other benefits 300 1200 492 864 480 360 - - - - 646
RMEAIFHEIES  Contribution to retirements
benefits schemes 12 12 12 12 12 12 - - - - n
feAL Bonus 500 - - - - - - - - - 500
BALHZERE  Bquity-settled share option
EH expenses 39 39 39 39 39 39 - - - - 234

s Total emoluments 3571 1,251 543 915 531 411 07 80 80 80 1,529
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DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Employees’ emoluments

During the year ended 30 April 2013, the five highest paid individuals included
four directors (2012: three), details of whose emoluments are set out in note
8(a) to the consolidated financial statements above. The emoluments of the one

(2012: two) remaining individuals for the year are as follows:—

A4 1]
Group
G- St B S
2013 2012
T#x T
HK$°000 HKS$’000
s L H A AR A Salaries and other benefits 840 1,500
R K Contribution to retirements
benefits schemes 15 24
MG AE AL Discretionary bonus 70 70
925 1,594

BN — 44 JF 2 g A 2 S A R
T

The emoluments of the one remaining highest paid individual other than

directors are within the following bands:

= L
2013 2012

M2 1,000,000 #5 T

(c)  FAAFIA > AN [ SIf 40 ] AT Ao 2 2 BT A
37 J R BT L SCAHE AT 2/ 2 A
B B SO A R 2 S8 B A 7 A 1

Nil to HK$1,000,000 1 2

(c) During the year, the Group did not pay the directors or any of the five
highest paid individuals any emoluments for inducement to join the

Group or upon joining the Group or compensation for loss of office.
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9. A4ENE (EHE) R (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

St SRR

2013 2012
T#7u THETT
HKS$°000 HKS$’000
(FE%1))
(Restated)
AR (E518) A (Loss)/Profit for the year has been arrived at after
BB (GEA) FAIKIE ¢ charging/(crediting):
SRR Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 10,441 8,317
B % 5 & 4 TR IE 2 iR Write off of amounts due from customers for contract work 3,011 10,000
72 BT <5 Auditors’ remuneration 931 619
Tl R o B S 2 A7 LA Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 1,441 2,121
P8 Rt Depreciation and amortisation
BB EE Owned assets 4,102 3,798
DARE R KR 2 Assets held under finance leases 92 243
4,194 4,041
B DTG R Less: Amount capitalised to construction contracts
B HIENL AR (3,140) (2,769)
1,054 1,272
AR ~ Wk BB 2 e Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 6 13,345
Tt BT ST A 2 Minimum lease payments for operating leases
IR 4 in respect of land and buildings 1,154 1,208
B DTG IR Less: Amount capitalised to construction contracts
B HIMEAL AR (1,036) (1,036)
118 172
BT (B E) Staff costs including directors’ emoluments
— A G 2 MR IR — Equity-settled share option expenses 476 272
— DA At 7 S AT — Settled by other means 38,999 29,671
39,475 29,943
B DTG R Less: Amount capitalised to construction contracts
B HIENL AR (21,928) (19,324)

17,547

10,619
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10. X8

ERAREADARREREE T —=4FNH
ST HIEEEREE F - FN A =4H IR
FEZBE -

11. & OEE),ZA

B REEA (51 8 A 9 AR5 A 4F B AR A A
HE 2 R A NG Ol 1) 3 Bl & 3% 49 s 17
14,219,000 #5 76 ( — % — —4F © ¥ £17,146,000
W OT) AR A AT AR R 0 R T 2 R
1,119,762,693 B ( —Z&——4F : 1,113,589,961 /i)
FHEE o

A A B 3 P 37 4 ) B EL M R A 5
4 5291 g PR M )

DIVIDEND

No dividend has been proposed by the directors nor paid by the Company for
the year ended 30 April 2013 and the year ended 30 April 2012.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on the (loss)/
profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company totalling approximately
loss of HK$14,219,000 (2012: profit of HK$7,146,000) for the year and on the
weighted average number of 1,119,762,693 (2012: 1,113,589,961) ordinary

shares in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share have been disclosed as no diluting effects existed

during the year.
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12. &Y% INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
A
Group
T
HKS$’000
REE——FRH—H At 1 May 2011 22,490
ANFAEZ 3N Increase in fair value 6,850
REE—TAFMH =1H At 30 April 2012 29,340
NP Z G Increase in fair value 6,410
W _ZE—=4NH=1H At 30 April 2013 35,750

A AL B LR B s 2 W) S 2R U0 1R R A A+
Ao WARPREEFAA A o A 4L E 2 P2
ISPEAR R EH > 308 R ARIIEREY
Fo R _EFE-=HFMA=1H xEWERE
fit 2 W% 1T 4% 35,750,000 95 oG ( & — 4R ¢
29,340,000 #57G) °

REHZ BEYHER —F-=FNH=1+HZ
O SFAELT RR AR M8 7 T A SRS (L T A U
EE TG A PR A RUR R HAEAT 2 G EEEL > 247
B AR [ AL AR R 22 o IR ST ST E ST AN A R A
oy (B 2 O ) R ([ D B 2 K A
g ) AN ML e ((FEHEmEd ) 2
BB > 0BT R B B AU T A B b
i (B ) SR ALBE o A% P 7 R o R (R E

A 2 BRAL T S8 I 36 2 32 5y (AR T R E

A4 ] B SR M 2R S A (FTA )
SRR IR A8 T A AR %22 899,000 %5 IT (=%
— A 1 834,000 7 T0) o WY AR A 4 (R 4 B )
EEAZ BRGEE -

The Group’s property interests are situated in Hong Kong, held under a long
term lease and rented out under operating leases. The Group’s properties are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties. At 30 April 2013, the carrying amount of such property
interests amounted to HK$35,750,000 (2012: HK$29,340,000).

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 30 April 2013 has
been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by Vigers
Appraisal & Consulting Limited, independent qualified professional valuers
not connected with the Group. Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited is a
member of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (“RICS”) and the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors (“HKIS”), and has appropriate qualifications and
recent experiences in the valuation of properties in the relevant locations. The
valuation, which conforms to International Valuation Standards, was arrived at

by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.

The property rental income earned by the Group from its investment properties,
all of which are leased out under operating leases, amounted to HK$899,000
(2012: HK$834,000). There are no direct operating expenses arising on the

investment properties in either years.
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13. W3 ~ B Bk i PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
4 Group
SBE RMLIES &
HE L W R B A KE
Kbk Ty Metal Gondolas ¥{H  Furniture
Leasehold land Plantand tubes and and related Motor and FLE
and buildings machinery  catwalks equipment  vehicles fixtures Total
Tikr  Tkr  Fkx FEx Tx Tk T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$000
JAR COST
N A—H At 1 May 2011 20,582 1,068 35916 5,405 5,585 6,696 75252
NE Additions - - 5,923 381 415 546 7,265
& Disposals (11,309) = = = (119) 48)  (11,476)
ANF—TAENA=TH At 30 April 2012 9,073 1,068 41,839 5,786 5,881 7,194 71,041
{??%E Additions - - 7,175 1,009 1,311 55 9,550
firfis Disposals - - - = (36) = (36)
AR ZAENA =1 At 30 April 2013 9,273 1,068 49,014 6,795 7,156 7,249 80,555
Pt R g DEPRECIATION
& AMORTISATION
AR At 1 May 2011 4,453 1,065 25,189 4242 4,198 6374 45521
AR AR Provided for the year 419 1 2,670 267 568 116 4041
A Eliminated on disposals (3,645) = = = (113) 48)  (3.806)
AR -THENA=TH At 30 April 2012 1,227 1,066 27,859 4,509 4,653 6,442 45,756
E A Provided for the year 229 1 2,924 245 674 121 4,194
S Eliminated on disposals = - - - (36) (36)
AR —-=FNA=1H At 30 April 2013 1,456 1,067 30,783 4754 5,291 6,563 49914
Eﬁmﬁ CARRYING VALUES
“E-SHENA=ZAA At 30 April 2013 7,817 1 18,231 2,041 1,865 686 30,641
REF—ZFNA=1H At 30 April 2012 8,046 2 13,980 1277 1,228 752 25,285

AL 2 R T AR AU - LA A

ERASFA -

The leasehold land and buildings of the Group are situated in Hong Kong and

are held under medium-term leases.
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13. 3 -~ W5 s o

WIS ~ B B T 0% B SRR 3 T B AR 2 40
-

T - s e i FEFLA A1
W B s 20%
GG AR 10%
s TAEA R 9 4T
T A S A B s 20%
1R 20%
ERVS & 20%

RoFE—=FNH =+ H > AREERCEH L
T 2R R 2 AR TNFE A % 1,820,000 5 7T
(ZFE—4 11,226,000 #57T) ©

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the

following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the term of the lease

Plant and machinery 20%
Metal tubes and catwalks 10%
Gondolas over 9 years
Gondolas and related equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

At 30 April 2013, the net book values of motor vehicles of the Group include
HK$1,820,000 (2012: HK$1,226,000) in respect of assets held under finance

leases.
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

A
Company
e St AR
2013 2012
T#7u THETT
HK$°000 HKS$’000
JE LR > R Unlisted shares, at cost 5 5
M A r 2 FEREIE Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:—
s R,
B AT R Pkt & A
Place of Jhe AR ZHAI EEEH
W 2 ENEREA incorporation/ Issued and fully Percentage of Principal
Subsidiary Form of legal entity operation  paid up share capital registered capital held activity
ZE =g DR
2013 2012
WLS (BVI) Limited AR AT B oeiids 3 3,851V 0 100 100 HEER
Limited Company British Virgin Islands Ordinary HK$3,851 Investment holding
Talent Gain HRAT FRELTER I 780 T 100 100 BEER
International Limited Limited Company British Virgin [slands Ordinary HK$780 Investment holding

WG MR A R 2 2 AT EEAE

TR TE BA 5 IR DL 2 A S R 2 BR TG B

A RV RF AT 2 I 24 AR MR 43 o

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the investments in the

subsidiaries is not less than the carrying amount reflected in the statement of

financial position.

Details of particulars of indirectly held subsidiaries of the Company are set out

in note 43.
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15. FEWC(fF) B )& 2 W 2 3k 0H

JEW, (AF) B I 2 W) 2 TR 2 AT - R HE
Fe IR BRI o 3% %5 45 Bk 2 MR T (BB FE 2

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of such balances approximate their

SEAEARAS o fair values.
A2 ]
Company
—Er—=AkE S
2013 2012
T THIT
HKS$°000 HK$’000
JRE VS 5 g A ) 2 ik I Due from subsidiaries 132,097 131,850
W I E T Less: Impairment losses (10,403) (23,588)
121,694 108,262
JEEAST BB 2 ) 2 3K IE Due to subsidiaries 2,442 2,441
16. & GOODWILL
AR JH
Group
THIT
HK$°000
B AR COST
AEFE——FHH—H - -4 At 1 May 2011, 30 April 2012 and 30 April 2013
WH=1THEKZ_F—=4MH=1H 3,138
YU T L CARRYING VALUE
R F—=4FMA =1+H

MEF—TAEMH =+1H

At 30 April 2013 3,138

At 30 April 2012 3,138



T2 (i)

K8 R ZES B DR MR 2 T A M B R P 2 T
WA R A DR 2 Bl & A B o P
2 JRTHI H 3,138,000 ¥ JG J% 7 B0y e 25 Fff g 2
Z T M AR & B 7 93 AR S B TR A b 2 2 5
T HE RS 2 B4 T PR B ([ 8037 )

A ) g A 0 7R AT SR (L > B P R
B A R (L S Ry S AR A T (0

WECE—ZAENH = HIREEA - AEE
A LI e S 280 T 78 B 2 L7 10 A0 ) B

52 B0 22 AT i e 4 B MR A0 PR R (B 0 A I
HETRETE o A7 B AT e e A D AR BEA T E EARGE
FIOL o BT R EME RS T SRR ARBE AL B4
J g A S5 0T PR TR T 2 B i T
) s T A B TR GEL TR 5 5 A7 S [ B DA 10% B e 38
B s MR AN R R 5% 5 o w4 B TE S
A 1 2 B 4 T TR R E A ] 7 2
ERRFHA - TR N Z BRI R IIREE ER B
T B S T 8 Je 2 TR e o

17. R RE A W Z Bt
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GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition,
to the cash generating units that are expected to benefit from that business
combination. The carrying amount of goodwill of HK$3,138,000 was wholly
allocated to cash-generating unit in gondolas and parapet railings and assess

equipment installation and maintenance services of a subsidiary (the “Unit”).

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there

are indications that goodwill might be impaired.

During the year ended 30 April 2013, the management of the Group determined

that there was no impairment of the Unit to which goodwill has been allocated.

The recoverable amount of the Unit has been determined on the basis of
value in use calculations. Their recoverable amounts are based on certain key
assumptions. All value in use calculations use cash flow projections based on
latest financial budgets approved by the Company’s management covering a
period of 5 years with 10% growth rate, and at a discount rate of 8.5%. Cash
flow projections during the budget period for the Unit are based on the expected
gross margins during the budget period. Budgeted gross margins have been
determined based on past performance and management’s expectations for the

market development.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

AL
Group
R =4 E Snts S
2013 2012
Tt AR
HK$°000 HK$°000

JREA B E TR (E

Share of net assets
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17. JRBRE 2 2 BESE (0

MoE A=+ H > B F R

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the associates at 30 April 2013 are as follows:—

=
AN TPk R AT
E3i iR WA Bt A 2 Th i b
BEER 248 H Jii s Proportion of
Form of Place of i 53 8 3 nominal value of
Wi AW 418 business incorporation/ Class of issued share capital F T
Name of associate structure operation shares held held by the Company Principal activity
BM Technologies a7 WA e il eyl 36.36% Eid<ed e
Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary Investment holding
Wui Chun Building a9 i eyl 36.36% [E: 5
Material Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary Dormant
1 BE AN 4 H 2 B 45 O R 2 B ES Y RHR E E 5) G The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s associates is set
T out below:—
A4 M
Group
e St e St S
2013 2012
Tt THETT
HK$°000 HK$°000
& HE Total assets 51 16
AR Total liabilities (1,228) (1,591)
AR Net liabilities 1,177) (1,575)
AL AL M A 2 Group’s share of net assets
HEE E of associates - -
i i Revenue - =
AR A (BHR) Profit/(Loss) for the year 29 (17)
AP JRE 7S A [ R A i A ) Group’s share of results of associates
2R for the year* - _
& JRE A 4 A W) s TR A PR g The share of loss of associates are limited to the investment cost of the Group.

ARSI 2 B A
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INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

ASE

Group
e St AR
2013 2012
T#7u THETT
HK$°000 HKS$’000

B A T T (L

TR AR A = H o BRI RS A

Share of net assets

Particulars of the jointly controlled entities at 30 April 2013 are as follows:—

2R -
AL H A TR AT
JBe AR 2 T Eb A5
GRL Proportion of
EBRMIEX K B ER nominal value of
Form of Place of &g Vil issued share capital
AR business incorporation/ Class of indirectly held by E/ il
Name of company structure operation share held the Company Nature of business
MKP-Wui Loong Al A L5y SiiEt e 49%  HEEMNEIEE R AT
System Scaffolds Incorporated Malaysia Ordinary Promoting scaffolding
Sdn Bhd systems
Wui Foo Engineering S RS s e 50%  fRALETHLE
Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary Provision of climbing
scaffolding
WLS (Oversea Projects) k1t lia7 itk il 50%  MREE SRR E IR B IR
Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary Mining and exploration

ih =% — =4 H =+ H > MKP-Wui Loong
System Scaffolds Sdn Bhd & WLS (Oversea

Projects) Limited i A Bl 46 SE5

of natural resources

At 30 April 2013, MKP-Wui Loong System Scaffolds Sdn Bhd and WLS (Oversea

Projects) Limited have not yet commenced business.
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18. RS [R5 Z BE 4R ()

A TR A S T LARRE i 2 1) B 2 1) 42 ) A S A

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s interests in

Z B E R BRI T jointly controlled entities which are accounted for using the equity method is set
out below:—
p. L]
Group
- St: e S
2013 2012
T#x THIT
HK$’000 HK$°000
T Current assets 59 3,468
FE U B Non current assets - 5
e UE=Ei Current liabilities (6,975) (7,212)
A Income - -
B =% Expenses (3,177) (286)
AR 8 Loss for the year (3,177) (286)
AN A B A 2 [ A s ] 42 o Group’s share of results of jointly controlled
T HEE entities for the year* - =
S ARG A 2 ) 42 ) i 2 2 o 18 185 R 4 4 T 48 5 * The share of loss of jointly controlled entities is limited to the investment cost of the

7 o

19. JREWCHE 22 2 i) A 3 ] 42 i 41
X ZARIE

REE F AN A =+ HIREER - ik
— [ 3 [7] 2 1l 1> 2 2 K 3,020,000 5 T 4% = A
H e BUR TR I B (2 —24F « = (A
2T ZERATIR FEHR B FHE > 8% £ TRAK
o HAZEOR AR -

o A A B WSS ] 42 ) £ 3 B O ) 22 R
PR - REHE RN BOR R AUR o %A
B MR T { SELEL (BT A

WE Z—=4FENH =1 HIEEE > Tk
gt o ) o ] 2 o A S B A KA H B

Group.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES AND
JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

In the year ended 30 April 2012, an amount of HK$3,020,000 due from a jointly
controlled entity carried interest at the 3-month US LIBOR (2012: 3-month US

LIBOR), and it was unsecured and repayable on demand.

All other amounts due from jointly controlled entities and associates are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of

such balances approximate their fair values.

During the year ended 30 April 2013, impairment had been made for all

amounts due from associates and jointly controlled entities.
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20. #8 INVENTORIES
A 4L
Group
R = —FE -
2013 2012
T T
HK$°000 HK$°000
JERE— B A A Raw materials — at cost 756 623
B — AR E Finished goods — at cost 120 63
876 686

P W B ke % LAt B WA sk D TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
A ]
Group
e St R
2013 2012
T THTT
HK$’000 HK$’000
JE R AR Trade receivables 57,072 55,581
oA FE WS R IE Other receivables 20,700 20,700
77,772 76,281
B R IERREA Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (20,700) (12,457)
57,072 63,824

HRIEW 2 T Al 264k B BRI 17.15 & 17.17 16 »

JEURR N ) S A 4 [ ) — B B R (b AR N R R
JEE A1 8% 2 A R B e P % o

MoE—ZAENA =+ H > DTS EAREE
— BT B 2 ) S8 R SR 40 2 4 A B B R At AR
PNER ZE AR H = H (s 2
M1 8%

According to rules 17.15 and 17.17 of the GEM Listing Rules on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange, a disclosure obligation arises where the relevant advance to an

entity from Companies and the Group exceeds 8% of the Company’s total assets.

As at 30 April 2013, the following advance to a subcontractor for the completion
of a construction contract for a subsidiary of the Group exceeded 8% of the

Company’s total assets as at 30 April 2013, before the recognition of provisions:

T A& R E Oy Lb
HK$’000 % of Total assets

JEB FEL T A R BR A Polysources Worldwide Limited 20,700 0% (BiEE) (Note)

BEEE - MRS E A =& — =4I = H 2BRORE -

Note: The entire advance was fully impaired as at 30 April 2013.



102

SEFEIERR AR AT WLS Holdings Limited

w05 R B ik

B MAC I sk e L A JE WLk T (o)

Eﬁ;gégﬁﬂlﬁ T H o g R AR
B N TYBUA N T - AN R S M A
FZES - ERATHAR > EIE R e
R s S A B 2 B A CE R A ZE M b
Bi) BB 2 S A o

VA b 2 B0 B A S B O R R —
AT AR A 1) 5% 20 40 7 4 3t 2 SR 7 A o %M

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The above subcontractor and its ultimate beneficial owners were independent
of and not connected with the Company, the Directors, chief executive,
management shareholders or substantial shareholders of the Company, its
subsidiaries or their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules), as at 30 April 2013.

The advance resulted from funds provided to the subcontractor by the Group in

its ordinary course of business and on normal commercial terms. It is unsecured

WO A S ~ G B Bl — IR AE R U E R and interest free, and has normal terms of settlement.
RIERRB A RN Z EE R Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the year were as
follows:—
A4
Group
—R =4 SR
2013 2012
T#T THIT
HK$°000 HK$°000
#H—H 1 May 12,457 11,916
SRR A Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 10,350 8,317
ANRE NS ] 2 MR AR Amounts written off as uncollectible (2,107) (7,776)
WA =+A 30 April 20,700 12,457

ol A AJ [ R A R R (A4 0 18 A 5
2 MEUS AR K3 465 20,700,000 5 7T ( & — 4F ¢
12,457,000 #575) o 1 7l 75 ol (B 2 M WA R 3 B 44
RIERZHEF AR - HE A ARG R T 2
W]

16 45 42 {1 3 25 5 B4 2 0 S T AR IR A I 2 A

Included in the above allowances for impairment of trade receivables
of the Group are allowances for individually impaired trade receivables
of HK$20,700,000 (2012: HKS$12,457,000). The individually impaired
receivables relate to customers that were in default and only a portion of the

receivables is expected to be recovered.

The credit terms given to each individual customer were in accordance with the

A A 2 A AR T $E AL o MR A AR K B oA payment terms stipulated in the relevant tenders or contracts. The aged analysis
JEUSCHIE BRI AT T of trade and other receivables is as follows:—

2013 2012
T THIT
HKS$’000 HK$’000
0—90 H 0 to 90 days 28,177 24,847
91—180 H 91 to 180 days 3,382 1,962
181—365 H 181 to 365 days 4,657 5,696
A 1 4R Above 1 year 41,556 43,776

77,772 76,281
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JRE WAg W 7k e At RE WA 3k JEL (1) TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

s ML A A i A 6 5 2 e 2 R AR R The aged analysis of the trade and other receivables that are past due but neither

J HAh RSO 2 BREE AT A T individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:—

AL

Group
e St B S
2013 2012
T#x THIT
HK$°000 HKS$’000
R Current 28,177 24,925
IR 7S Less than 6 months past due 3,382 2,607
7 1 e 7S A A Over 6 months past due 25,513 24,197
57,072 51,729

2. ngc/( WA BB &8 TR AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) CUSTOMERS FOR

KA CONTRACT WORK
A4 M
Group
TR AR e St
2013 2012
T# TH#IT
HK$°000 HK$°000
TR AR TE 2 TAR - Contracts in progress at the end of the reporting period:
S K A I A Contract costs incurred to date plus attributable profits
Yo A Yok L e e 4 less recognised losses 295,621 258,791
i % R M SR T Progress payments received and receivable (234,613) (202,560)
61,008 56,231
Ve R i 4 Analysed for reporting purposes as:
JENF T A4 TRERIE Amounts due from customers for contract work 64,297 58,120
JEAT % F A #) LRI Amounts due to customers for contract work (3,289) (1,889)

61,008 56,231
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JE WA PR 1] <22 RETENTION MONIES RECEIVABLE
AL
Group
e St R
2013 2012
T THIT
HK$°000 HK$°000
JRE WA FR I8 4 Retention monies receivable 6,717 7,942
B SRRV Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts - (78)
6,717 7,864
RSB AE N Z ZE IR Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the year were as
follows:—
A A
Group
- St TR
2013 2012
F#T THIT
HK$°000 HK$°000
fH—H 1 May 78 79
ANRE N ] 2 SRR Amounts written off as uncollectible (78) (1)
PWH=1H 30 April - 78
24. TAAPRRIH ~ %48 B it e B PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
g7 CURRENT ASSETS
TARTRRIE ~ $ede R B G 2 A E Details of prepayments, deposits and other current assets are as follows:-
y: = L] y: /A
Group Company
- S B4 e Sy —E— T4
2013 2012 2013 2012
T#x THT T#x T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TaAF A Prepayments 519 457 171 100
%4 Deposits 423 371 - =
HoAth 37 Bl Other current assets 1,496 1,396 - 71
2,438 2,224 17 171




25. #1
17K

TR R B R ERAT

GRAT A5 R S B 4 B0 45 A 42 1) T 4 2 B 4 % R 3
W H A =A8 A 8T Z R AT ARk o SRATS
BRI AT 4E BE 35T 0% & 2% 2 Rl HKFHE. -

HEAERAT A7 SRR 4R T 8- 47 2 T2k A (R 82 7
AR 2 SRAT(E B o B K4 680,000 5 G (—F
— A 1 680,000 #5TT) 2 A7k DAYE R A S TR
THH - K A e E o

JEEASF Bk e Lt MEE £ K JH
‘H%ﬁ&EMEH I € 45 G R
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BANK BALANCES AND CASH/PLEDGED BANK
DEPOSIT

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and short term bank
deposit with an original maturity of three months or less. The bank balances

carry interest at rates ranging from 0% to 2% for both years.

Pledged bank deposit represented deposit pledged for banking facilities granted
to the Group. Deposit amounting to HK$680,000 (2012: HK$680,000) has been
pledged to secure a construction project and is therefore classified as a current

asset.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of HK$10,216,000

10,216,000 % 7T (=2 —4F © 8,628,000 70) > (2012: HK$8,628,000) with an aged analysis as follows:—
HARE TR
AL
Group
G- Sl ¥ —B— 4
2013 2012
T#T TH#IT
HKS$°000 HKS$°000
0—90 H 0—90 days 6,793 6,594
91—180 H 91 — 180 days 1,088 1,060
181—365 H 181 — 365 days 2,264 890
A 1 4R Above 1 year 71 84
JREA AR A AR Total trade payables 10,216 8,628
A AT 2RI R RE S T 2 SRS Details of other payables and accruals are as follows:—
A AT
Group Company

R4 TR G- Sy —E T
2013 2012 2013 2012
Tt TH#IT T#x TH#IT
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
HoAth EAT R IE Other payables 649 614 126 166
ﬁ’% w2 il Accruals 4,092 3,658 520 434

4,741 4,272 646 600
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27. H At Bk — AR

SR MR - 1A R 6% S R A E 1
H o

i

OTHER LOANS - UNSECURED

The amounts are unsecured, interest bearing at 6% per annum and there are no

fixed terms for repayment.

AL A
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Tt THIT F#n THIT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
A B IR — EHEH Other loans — unsecured 5,341 5,461 = =

28. AiEMAIRIE

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

S AR #9458k SRR £ 18 sk Bl
Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments
e e e S G- Sl ¥ R T4
2013 2012 2013 2012
R THIT Tt THETT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$ 000
—4&ER Within one year 703 327 610 281
BoEH RN In the second to fifth
(455 R W4F) year inclusive 1,093 699 1,021 635
1,796 1,026
B RAR RS Less: future finance charges (165) (110)
FE RIS 2 BlE Present value of lease
obligations 1,631 916 1,631 916
B AN R Less: Amount due within
AT Z RIA G I one year shown under
B AFETIIR) current liabilities (610) (281)
AR B A S A 2 30H Amount due after one year 1,021 635

A 4 [ DA iR A0 B 25 IR » SRR AR
WA =4 e _F—=4F W H =+ HIEF
B 738 B MR AE AR R R A A T 2.5 [ E 3.25
JE o FIZRTHH A &) H W E - i A B L E
FERERR R E > H AR s R A B R SRR T L &
Pk o

The Group leases certain of its motor vehicles under finance leases. The
average lease term is three years. For the year ended 30 April 2013, the average
effective borrowing rate ranged from 2.5 to 3.25 per annum. The interest rate
is fixed at the contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no

arrangement has been entered into for contingent rental payments.
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28. WhE R A @)

A 2 BB LA RIS DL AL AR GE A S
7 AR o

o A A I B R TR 2 AT (TR

PRAG R A B L B 1 i A SR 2 IR T 35
YT H 2 BUEEE ) B EAR I (ELAH A -

29, SRITERNEX

AL

SRAT B K B 08 S0 A HR A S 4 BEOR B — 4 A

o

i

A% 42 [ BT A RAT B0 3K B3 S HA) 4 IR T 4 A 2%
TR o AP DAERE— 0 H & 8R4 T R 247 B
LS JE & A R AR 125 ] (=R —
AF R R R 1,25 A R R S 1,25 )8
B ARG H B s SRAT IR 2E 87 2N 1.58) o

G ARE M BT R BB N TE (T
R A R A B 4 Ui B #  o 0oR 2 E I T 8
FZr B BUEME ) BLART{E AR o

HUT R I L 2 WE R FE BRI BRE3S -

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
(CONTINUED)

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor’s charge

over the leased assets.

The directors consider the fair values of the Group’s finance lease obligations,
determined based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted using the prevailing market rate at the end of the reporting period

approximates to the corresponding carrying amounts.

BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS

Group

Bank loans and overdrafts are secured and are repayable on demand or within

one year.

All the Group’s bank loans and overdrafts carry interest at 1 month Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (the “HIBOR”) plus 1.5% per annum to Hong Kong
Dollar Prime Rate (the “Prime Rate”) plus 1.25% per annum (2012: Hong Kong
Dollar Prime Rate (the “Prime Rate”) minus 1.25% per annum to Prime Rate
plus 1.25% per annum and 1 month Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (the
“HIBOR”) plus 1.5%).

The directors consider the fair values of the Group’s bank loans and overdrafts,
determined based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted using the prevailing market rate at the end of the reporting period,

approximate the carrying amounts.

Details of the securities for the bank loans and overdrafts are set out in

note 35.
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DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

B 2 A I A A AR B RO AL AR B R R 2 Movements in deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group during the
B AE R IE BB DL A B E) current and prior years are as follows:—
AL M Group
o At I B 8 LB
Accelerated Revaluation
B 15 tax of A5t
Tax losses depreciation properties Total
TH#TT THTT THTT THTT
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
R_F——FnH—H At 1 May 2011
(F FLRiTH ) (As previously reported) 779 (1,511) (916) (1,648)
R E) Changes in accounting policy
(B 2(d)) (note 2(d)) (26) 363 916 1,253
RoE——ERA—H (E) At 1 May 2011 (Restated) 753 (1,148) - (395)
s ASE A RTIER Charge to profit or loss in the
2 i A sl e 48 consolidated statement
of comprehensive income (753) (635) - (1,388)
REF—ZHENA=+H K At 30 April 2012
ZF—TAEAH—H (E5) and 1 May 2012 (Restated) = (1,783) = (1,783)
FEASE A RTIE ER Charge to profit or loss in the
Z i A i e 48 consolidated statement
of comprehensive income - (328) - (328)
R_F =M =1H At 30 April 2013 - (2,111) = (2,111)
TR BAAR R AR AR T 2 FER T Details of unrecognized deferred tax assets at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:—
B4R e S
2013 2012
T THTT
HK$’000 HK$’000
(%))
(Restated)
LE BN NG Property, plant and equipment (313) (143)
KRASEBLIE G 1E Unabsorbed tax losses 4,936 5,969
4,623 5,826
F A H 2 i A1 AR IR 45 TR > 45 A IS R I The deferred tax assets have not been recognised in the consolidated financial
SNf7 A% iR A0 4B T o B LM 1 T A PRI % statements due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses

-

may be carried forward indefinitely.
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31. A SHARE CAPITAL
R St G- St St TR TAR
2013 2013 2012 2012
Jhe 88 Tt JBc THTT
No of shares HK$°000 No of shares HK$°000

BE AR Authorised

BRI 0.01 #5762 W4t Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

A H =+H At 30 April 10,000,000,000 100,000  10,000,000,000 100,000

B AT BB R B AR Issued & fully paid

AHH—H At 1 May 1,119,762,693 11,198 998,882,693 9,989

HRAR R R T 1 B4 7 i A7 Issue of shares under

(BRFEE (1)) Share Option Scheme
(note (1)) - - 2,500,000 25

i 5 FR 0y (B3 (i) Placing of shares (note (ii)) - ~ 118380000 1,184

R H=1H As at 30 April 1,119,762,693 11,198  1,119,762,693 11,198

MEGE - Notes:

(i) RAEF-TFNA =T HIEEE 5 2,500,000 4 (i)  For the year ended 30 April 2012, 2,500,000 share options were exercised at the price
SR EHEAT L > SRR R B 0. 128 M5 7T - [RIIG of HK$0.128 per share, resulting in the issue of 2,500,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
#£172,500,000 F 5 AT B 0.01 HE T2 A58 7 3% each in the Company
Ak o

(i) WREF——FEAHT—H AN B E A (i)  On 11 May 2011, the Company entered into a Placing Agreement with a Placing Agent,

w17 B B ek o RO - AN F) E A MR A
i oy e v 07 988 e 65 A DA A Bt I S 44 0.188
W6 Z (B A% > L X £ 190,000,000 [ 48 2 &)
2 A (T il B A 1) T A D X & 2 7K i
YNNIV AWNE 852 STEnt X PN L A
Jre BER F——HHH T HER i
118,380,000 A ALt B M A7 AR 95 e 65 h e i s 8817
FARDINANA ZIKEEN o

pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to place through the Placing
Agent, on a best efforts basis, up to 190,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company (the
“Placing Shares”) to not less than six Placees who and whose ultimate beneficial owners
were independent third parties at a price of HK$0.188 per Placing Share. The Placing
was completed on 20 May 2011 and 118,380,000 Placing Shares were issued to not less

than six Placees in accordance with the terms of the Placing Agreement.
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32. falifhi RESERVES
N
Company
A EIRERE R A\ JERY
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
RS
A ki S B o A
Jht i 11 Share Convertible 8 R w8 ok Ziti
Share option loan note Warrant Accumulated ok
premium reserve equity reserve reserve losses Total
T T T T T T
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
ATl At 1 May 2011
hA—H 98,008 8,834 - 120 (26,859) 80,103
AAEEE R Loss and comprehensive loss
MRS for the year - - = - (2.416) (2.416)
s Placing of shares 21,071 - - - - 21,071
T A Exercise of share options 295 = - - - 295
T B Grant of share options - 272 - - - 272
TR RERERER AL Share options lapsed
during the year - (1,439) - - 1,439 -
SE R R Warrant lapsed
R during the year = = = (120) 120 =
R4 At 30 April 2012
MA=+1H% and 1 May 2012
I S
LA—H 119,374 7,667 - - (27,716) 99,325
SRR Profit and comprehensive income
BAHERA for the year - = = = 9,640 9.640
it A Grant of share options = 476 = - = 476
TR REERER AL Share options lapsed
during the year - (969) - - 969 -
LG Issue of warrant - - - 200 - 200
I St
MA=+H At 30 April 2013 119,374 7,174 - 200 (17,107) 109,641
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PN e = S S e iy ok IS E7 S
JRHERT B A AR AT T ——F N =1 H
A7 2 B SR A R B 58 ) IS S 2 38 1 T Rl 58
Kl o BUIEIRMERT B IL4R > AN FRTE R
AMEASZ AT A M PR P L B T ) 2 e et
VLRI 2 WA M A AR AT R A 2580 -

RBAR AR ZF——F/NA =T H RN
JRERERT S (ToT# ) Z ek > AN A ER G ([#
S 1) n] 2 RERY 1 B AR 7 AT o] B A
2 AR B (RIS AR/ w) i ELAT fo] B g 4 /] 3
AT~ FEFAT B M8 S I AT o = A 4 AT A
BT ZATATRE B ) B AN A DAGRIE AR 20 ]
ety » FZEH M BB #E S - 5 G E B R
W o AR T ) B A ) A o] 25 A o R A - 42
H T 1 AR AT ol 2 T A AR A AT (8 1T 7 DA 34T
Z A AR s FERT R MR R o A
AR NI E A TIAS 30% ©

PR (77 - A ) 308 ] i AR 42 A B2 Bt T
P 2 SRR (BLHE B AT B i AR AT (6 S A
1M B AT SOl T8 AT 2 I 2 R E » A
AN T BT IRAS R 1% » BRI (a) Il JBR
EEEILR 5 S (b) BEHHEHESZ Hh R AR Be o b
B2 W IREHE o 2 A s T I IR IR 2 A S el At
fE 1T
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 25 November 2001 was
terminated by a written resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 30 August 2011. Upon
termination of this share option scheme, no further share options under this
scheme could be granted, but the provisions of this share option scheme will
remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the

exercise of those share options granted prior to its termination.

Under the terms of the Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 30
August 2011 (the “Option Scheme”), for the primary purpose of providing
incentive to directors, eligible employees and consultants, the board of directors
of the Company (the “Board”) may, at its absolute discretion, offer full-time
employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, including executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or any consultants or advisors of any member of the Group, to take
up options to subscribe for shares of the Company. The maximum aggregate
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not, subject to the conditions set out in the
Option Scheme, exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from

time to time.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued on the exercise of
options granted and to be granted (including both exercised and outstanding
options) to a grantee in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the total
issued share capital of the Company in issue, unless (a) a shareholder circular
is dispatched to the shareholders; and (b) the shareholders approve the grant of
the options in excess of the limit referred to herein. A nominal consideration of

HKS$1 is payable on acceptance of each grant.
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33. BEMBERESHE (w0

REMEE Ty S R AT o AR (a) 3
etz B> BB T e A TR >
A AR O 2 H TR 2 B g S R
PR AN F SO A B AR 2 T 5 (b) B4R
B FBCHE IR AL S H > s at B T
A TURAFE T > Bk S e @ el IR A
H Al 5 H PR S B H R AE R PR 2
B R SR 2 P BT 5 K (o) Bt T
{H s =FUREHE R -

AR A B 2 AR o T P B A i AL
HRIZN 0[] 19 B R 2 B B A A7 08 - MEAR 4%
Al 2 R o R AT R RS S R R
BRI R 2 HR R 14F o AR 2
X o Sl 488 B T b A A R B SR ] O AT AT
WA 2 — JRHLE -

R B (ELfRE ) Priv AR m i« S B R
LU

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The subscription price was determined by the Board, but may not be less than
the highest of (a) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the GEM as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of offer of the
options or, where certain conditions set out in the Option Scheme apply, on the
date of the Board proposing such grant; (b) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares on the GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
offer of the options or, where certain conditions set out in the Option Scheme
apply, the average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares on the GEM as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the Board proposing such grant; and (c) the

nominal value of the shares.

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance with the terms
of the Option Scheme at any time during a period to be notified by the Board
to each grantee that the period within which the option may be exercised shall
not be more than 10 years from the date on which the offer of the grant of the
options is made in accordance with the terms of the Option Scheme. There is no
general requirement on the minimum period for which an option must be held

before an option can be exercised under the terms of the Option Scheme.

Details of movements in the Company’s share options held by employees

(including directors) are as follows:—

W%k Ro%—=
HHA—H WA=+H
B WRRHERE RN ERSE FERRR WRERA
(LHFEERRHA) Fiffif Number of Granted Exercised Lapsed  Number of
SR EH it Exercisable period Exercise share options during during during share options
2013 Date granted (both dates inclusive) price at 1.5.2012 the year the year the year  at 30.4.2013
T
HKS
Hh “ZEpLE “ETNENATEHE 0.6 21,500,000 = = ~ 21,500,000
Directors +H/NH SR A Y H
8 October 2007 15 April 2008 to
14 April 2014
e-2 9t “EENEF—ANLRE 0.217 5,700,000 - - ~ 5,700,000
fAZH “Z—E+—ANR
2 May 2008 9 November 2008 to

8 November 2014
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33. IEEREST 3 () SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

NoB——4F RoF—=4E
HH—H WH=1+H
FifE WEBHERE  BARE ERGE FERER BRERA
(LHFEHERERH) 1 Number of Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Number of
“EF-=8 RBAM Exercisable period Exercise share options during during during share options
2013 Date granted (both dates inclusive) price at 1.5.2012 the year the year the year  at 30.4.2013
T
HK$
“EF——f R ——Ft——-HF 0.091 12,000,000 = — (12,000,000) =
+H+TLH “F-_Ft+H=Z1—H
17 October 2011 1 November 2011 to
31 October 2012
e S “EF-THEF—AZFEHE 0061 ~ 36,300,000 = ~ 36,300,000
+—HJLH ZEF WA=+
9 November 2012 23 November 2012 to
22 November 2014
39,200,000 36,300,000 - (12,000,000) 63,500,000
= ZERTLAF ZEENFEHTHAZE 0.6 6,330,000 - - (250,000) 6,080,000
Employees THAH SRR A+ H
8 October 2007 15 April 2008 to
14 April 2014
“E T4 “F-FHET—ANHE 0.128 27,300,000 - - (11,500,000) 15,800,000
+—H/N\H “EF-RETZAEH
8 November 2010 8 November 2010 to
7 December 2016
e St 2 “EF—THEF—AZF=HE 0061 = 800,000 = = 800,000
+—HAJLH ZE WA=
9 November 2012 23 November 2012 to
22 November 2014
33,630,000 800,000 - (11,750,000) 22,680,000
R eSS “EF-THEF—AZF=HE 0061 ~ 5,500,000 = = 5,500,000
53 YN +—AJLE “F—-NE+—H=+=H
Directors’ 9 November 2012 23 November 2012 to
Associates 22 November 2014
- 5,500,000 - - 5,500,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

REF—T4 RZF—=
fA—H WA=1H
friE WRERE  ERRL ERTE ERER TR
(B EERA) Fr Number of Granted  Exercised Lapsed Number of
“E-TE RIAMY Exercisable period Exercise  share options during during during share options
2012 Date granted (both dates inclusive) price at 1.5.2012 the year the year the year at 30.4.2013
T
HKS$
(i —“F—f “F——Ft-A—-% 0.091 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) -
Consultant — TH+LH “Z-_FtA=1—H
17 October 2011 1 November 2011 to
31 October 2012
“E—F “E-CHEF-AStERE 0.061 - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
F=HHH “E-Et-AZ 1+
9 November 2012 23 November 2012 to
22 November 2014
2,000,000 2,000,000 - (2,000,000) 2,000,000
ELt s
Total 74,830,000 44,600,000 - (25,750,000) 93,680,000
TREER AT R
Number of share options exercisable at the end of the year 93,680,000
IET-47T
Weighted Average Exercise Price 0.3034 0.0610 - 0.1125 0.2405
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The fair values of services received in return for share options granted is
measured by reference to the fair value of share options granted. The estimate
of the fair value of the share options granted is measured based on the Binomial

model. The inputs into the model were as follows:—

3=k

L
SFF 0 ZF-F 0 2R CRCE CRSRE B C%SE 0 Rk
JEREB-EH BRMEC-ER BREA-EF RRED-EN BREA-EZ  optn203B RREC-EF BRED-EA
Option20(1B  Option2011C ~ Option20124 ~ Option2012B  Option2013A  -Directors’ ~ Option2013C  Option 2013D
-Employee - Employee ~Director - Consultant - Director associate  -Consultant - Employee

il Date of grant SREHE CAME TR
TAAR TAAR RAZH

§ October 2007 § October 2007 2 May 2008

AHE Fair value 02148 01619 006161
HKSO214  HKSOI619  HKS0.0616

IEREE Option ffe 65 65

65

() (in years) 6.5 years 6.5 years 6.5 years
Rt AN Grant dae shareprice. 0601 060 021TH
HKS0.60 HKS0.60 HK$0.217

il Exercise price 0607 00T 02T

HKS0.60 HKS0.60 HKS0217

it Expected voltility 2% % %
fE% Dividend yild 132% 132% %
ERERERHE Aol sk frecimerest  4196% 4196% 2467%
[ER i Staff mover e 2 4068% 18%

HR A% DA B BB 1 L BE ek - MR %
—Z4EP A=+ K F AN A =+ Ik
PO B4 JBE B AT Y B I L A AT (S 1A T A i R B
TESRJR o

ALEEPRE - F—Z4FNA =+ H ILFEES
$“ﬂ§ﬂ%%%%ﬁ%%i%?%ﬂmwm
W (& — 4 1 272,000 #5T)

SRR SRR CR—f 3 “R-CfF 0 CRCf TR CE0F
=AM +-AAR PATER BATER AR tARE AR +-AAR
§ November 2010 § November 2010 17 Qctober 2011 17 October 2011 9 November2012 9 November 2012 9 November 2012 9 November 2012
00607 00SREL 00T ool oonEx  oowniEn 000sEr  0000ER
HKS0.0605 HK$0.058 HKS0.0194 HKS$0.019 HKS0.0107 HKS$0.0107 HKS0.0108 HKS$0.0101
61 61 1 1 2 2% 2 1

0.1 years 0.1 years 1 year | year Dyears D years Dyears Dyears
01281 0.127 008 0088 006IET 00T 006lET 0061
HKS0.12 HKS0.12 HKS$0.08 HKS0.08 HKS0.061 HKS0.061 HKS0.061 HKS0.061
0I8HT 0BT 0MUET 00T 00T 006lET 006LET 006l
HKS0.128 HK$0.128 HKS$0.091 HKS0.091 HKS0.061 HKS0.061 HKS0.061 HKS0.061

§2% 8% 2% % 06% 06% 06% 06%
0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
1.276% 1.276% 0.14% 0.14% 0.188% 0.188% 0.188% 0.188%
115% 115% 0% 0% 33% 33% 0% 116%

In accordance with the terms of share-based arrangement, options issued during
the financial years ended 30 April 2013 and 30 April 2012 are fully vested

before the date of exercisable period.

The Group recognised total expenses of approximately HK$476,000 for the
year ended 30 April 2013 (2012: HK$272,000) in relation to share options
granted by the Company.
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33. BEMBERESHE (w0

A=A = H o R C 2
JBEHHE B ¥ A A AT (0 e B VA B i B 19 9k I A AR
NN B BB AT 2 8.4% (& — T4 ¢
6.7%) °

R AR - A A ARIER A 93,680,000 17 14
AT 1 B IREHE o Fc A 2 m) B IR 1 IR A B A
T BUAT A 10 SR AT {68 1 T G A A BRSO R AT
93,680,000 Bt 7 2 il - 78 i K BH A1 7R 936,800
Wt > DA AR TR 18 21,591,000 # G (R
BATHISE) o

34. FE LT vB e s

A ZE— TN =N > R 7] B 4 5
i8¢ A i R W N A T ST T L R I R I T
Tk o A5 R R R IR B 4 R R R R
1718 0.001 ¥ JCEEIE 100,000,000 13 5B AEHERE o 1Y
HoZE - FhA -+ EHREE T HE
At H =110 H M - 050 B as bt
R R 4 R R PR R R AR AT HR A T (4 0.075 ¥
TC AR — IR RR R HE R Ay

35. MK

TR AR - A ORI T 5 & A AR
PR — R SRAT R 2 R R

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

At 30 April 2013, the number of shares in respect of which options had been
granted and remained outstanding under the scheme was 8.4% (2012: 6.7%) of

the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 93,680,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 93,680,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of HK$936,800 and share premium of HK$21,591,000 (before

issue expense).

UNLISTED WARRANTS

On 28 August 2012, the company entered into two warrant subscription
agreements with two warrant subscribers respectively. Each of the respective
warrant subscribers agreed to subscribe for 100,000,000 warrants at the issue
price of HK$0.001 per warrant. Each of the warrants carries the right to
subscribe for one Warrant Share at the initial exercise price of HK$0.075 per
warrant share during a period of 30 months commencing from 27 September
2012 until 27 February 2015.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has pledged the following assets

as securities against general banking facilities granted to the Group:—

EE S TE AR

2013 2012

T#T SR

HK$’000 HK$°000

Eid<LyES Investment properties 35,750 29,340
FH A 1 b Je Leasehold land and buildings 7,817 8,046
AT Bank deposit 680 680
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36. HARHfE

RoE-ZFENH =+ H > AL RSN
2 REE K B AR R R SR TR H 646,600 ¥ TG
(T —T4F © 646,000 #E70) Z S HEEAR RS o

MROFE—Z4ENMA=Z+H > AAFA SR E S
788,100,000 9570 » ¥ K 1) HA T B g 2 vl $2 4t
WS 4% -

ES/ ST

AR T — TR 2 RRIE R S A7 RS ) B2
BEARAFZ Wb &8 A £ — B BAE
B> ERBEF =N A =+ HILFERE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 30 April 2013, the Group provided counter indemnities amounting to
HK$646,600 (2012: HK$646,000) to banks for surety bonds issued by the

banks in respect of construction contracts.

At 30 April 2013, the Company had contingent liabilities amounting to
HK$88,100,000 in respect of financial support provided to certain of its

subsidiaries.

Outstanding litigation

The outstanding litigation between one of the Group’s subsidiaries, Wui Loong
Scaffolding Works Company Limited and Able Contractors Limited that was
brought forward from the previous financial year was settled during the year
ended 30 April 2013.
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A COMMITMENTS
()  BEFA RS Sk (i)  Operating lease commitments and arrangements
RLE 75 RN The Group as lessee
AR IR > A B BB AT A0 A At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future
77T 3 3 1 2 AR A 2 AR A IR AR AR B K minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which
RIS - fall due as follows:
A4
Group
—g-=g —F ok
2013 2012
Tt T
HK$’000 HK$°000
—4ER Within one year 467 188
SRR AR (R E W) In the second to fifth year inclusive 261 =
728 188
REfAFIAE S TR LA LHE&Z Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for certain of its
T4 o FHA R4 =4 kR - T 7 office premises and staff quarters. Leases are negotiated for an average
B = NAERFANGE term of three years and rentals are fixed for an average of three years.
RLEFIEL RN The Group as lessor
AR - AL @liﬁi*ﬂ}f LI IIE S 53 At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants
AR B IR G for the following future minimum lease payments:
AR
Group
e St E Snts S
2013 2012
R THsIT
HK$°000 HK$°000
—4EN Within one year 586 753
B FREAE (B E R In the second to fifth year inclusive - 192
586 945

FHA SRR = B AR 42 A— 4R AR HAE 22 o Leases are negotiated and rental are fixed for terms of one year.
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OB EEEL ] —A# AEED AR
) I E A v B A ) A G s B L2 AR
St d o MMAGEE A BB LE L AEH L E
FAALRET 3 o IR BT ST H > A M R
B8 B AR5 5 ) e A A v 40 P R (R B i
AZ 5% azmr B H AR AR > Lh,250ME T A
FR > BHSN 2 (KR B R -

A A T B A WA A 2 41 bR 2 AR ORLAR 655,000 5 G
(3 — T4 11,021,000 95 TC) 45 A< 22 5] 7] 5 A
ST itk o

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has arranged for all qualifying
employees of the Company and its Hong Kong subsidiaries to join the
MPF Scheme. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, both the Group and
the employees make monthly contribution to the MPF Scheme at 5% of
the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation, subject to a cap of HK$1,250 per month and thereafter contributions

are voluntary.

The total cost charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
HK$655,000 (2012: HK$1,021,000) represents contributions payable to the
MPF Scheme by the Group.
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39. BEALRS RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Q) RN ARG E BB LRSS (i)  During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with

5 related parties:—

A 4L ]

Group
- St AR
2013 2012
T#7u THETT
HK$°000 HK$’000

JE[F]EE B 2 Jointly controlled entities

FLEMA Interest income 10 13
BB A Dividend income - -

B 2 o) Rl N 2 5 R A B A B B Details of the balances with the Group’s related parties are set out in the
IR P& BT o consolidated statement of financial position and respective notes.

(i) FEEHEANEMSE (i) Compensation of key management personnel

A TR > 38 2 N A A P A B 2 P < The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during

T the year was as follows:—

AW

Group
e Sy ST
2013 2012
T#7u THTT
HK$°000 HK$°000
S IR A Short-term benefits 6,641 6,916
BARAE R Post-employment benefits 90 72
JEASGE S 2 IRy Ah 2 3 H Equity-settled share-based payments 323 234
7,054 7,222

R FEEMAN B ZME ) B FNE 5 ek The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by the
o0 AR B B AR 2 T A SR B K T B A R E - Remuneration Committee or senior management having regard to the

performance of individuals and market trends.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade receivables, retention
monies receivable, deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables,
retention monies payable, bank loans and overdrafts. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.
Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the counterparts’
failure to perform their obligations as at 30 April 2013 in relation to each class
of recognised financial assets is the carrying amounts of those assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group is exposed to
concentration of credit risk as the carrying amounts of the receivables are
arising from a limited number of customers. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group has policies in place for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the management considers that the Group’s credit risk

is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited because the counterparties are banks

and creditworthy financial institutions.
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40. B4R A B e PR ()
) 3 4550 Rk B 4 B

VAR B A80RR B2 20 Ar T 4R i 1) 5 538 18l 2 2 i 4 31
AREA T fE T > S R R I 5% H B T 3 2
SR B R N8 N (3
] 3 L g P A0 S A BR8P L T 9 1% > T
A7 B 3 | T e LA ) 2 BT Al o

22 5 B 5 1% 1T T A A A ok R
B AERBEE _F =N H =+ F ILEE
F s 1S I BRI 2 425,000 75 76 (2 — 4
BWEF— AEM A =+ B k4% A
BB 422,000 9 7)o U7 A [ A 4E ]
VPR ERA T B A SRR o

A S 194 ) 5 AR B 5 A A LG A Tl A o

EAEH

7454 M ) 5 B A A T A R R R A A T R A
RERE S  MEFFIRMEAY EA LA > DISTRR2E
BB M v ORI

A T A PR AR SR > Sl sl A 9 R 5 e 5
DA Bl 7 ) Jm B Aok S A S A T R R
oy MR BT AR > R S T AT S R IR AN
SR BES, ~ 18] SRR R (] A el B AT A o AR SR
P AN AL AT S AR e 19 B AR B BT BR A = A
CE-=FUH=THRCFE-CFIH =T
HOR4ERE > M o B BUREGRRF -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined assuming that a change
in interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rates for financial instruments in existence
at that date. A 1% increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s

assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s loss for the year ended 30 April 2013 would increase/
decrease by HK$425,000 (2012: profit for the year ended 30 April 2012 would
decrease/increase by HK$422,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s

exposure to interest rates on its variable rate bank loans.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has not changed significantly from the

prior year.

Management of capital

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital

ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the years ended 30 April 2013 and 2012.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by
the total capital. Total debt includes interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts
and obligations under finance leases. The gearing ratios as at the end of the

reporting period were as follows:—

A
Group
e St B S
2013 2012
T#7u T
HK$°000 HK$°000
(FE%1))
(Restated)
R S ERA T L Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts 49,205 35,811
FiS<gisk b/ Obligations under finance leases 1,631 916
A Total debts 50,836 36,727
HEER (i) Total capital (i) 134,234 147,777
HE AR Gearing ratio 38% 25%
(i) HE 25 B G A4 3 T A5 G A S fi s > BRI R AN (i) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group, attributable to equity holders of
AMER AT A - the Company.
B 40 12 A R i B Cash flow interest rate risk

75 1) 3 R 8 ) R 2 RAT B S SRAT A K
T S5t R T 7R 32 | e A ) 2 B < i ) 0 J R
7 1] Sf7 4 o) 5 R 5 S e BOSRE o AR 4 [ L
B B R BT R 32 2 M| 22 g -

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through the changes in
interest rates related mainly to the Group’s variable-rates bank loans and bank
deposits and balances. The Group does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
The management of the Group would monitor and manage its exposure to

fluctuation in interest rates.
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40. B4R A B e PR ()
i B & 4 JE B

U B8 < o 5 4R T A SEE MR AT LB TR
MR 2 AR I AR R 2 By - B & &
R P 5 R 0 35 70 22 e 4 20T L S 2 A
B EE L -

B U ) R BLR AR A R B o A
A 0 K AR A A5 A 4 O T
T L ERATAEERAKF o

7 4 [ DA TR R B 4 U A 40 A A O B 4
Wi > 4L TR 2 B4 75 2R I BE SR AR A [ 2 i i R
4 DA AR B 700 A T 4 3 0 B R B B 4 7
3K o UL > SRATRLNE B ASEEAE IME AR Z T >
AT —ZAENH = H o A A 2 6
17 il & B %8 15 60,382,000 U0 (=& — 4 ¢
49,781,000 % 7T ) > H H149,205,000 % o ( — &
— 4 ¢ 35,811,000 #57T) AR A IR AEE) ] o

G IR > R RITERIERE - A%
B KA R S BB S BT

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that a group entity will encounter difficulty in raising
funds to meet commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity
risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its

fair value.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash. The
Group monitors and maintains a level of bank balances deemed adequate to

finance the Group’s operations.

The Group employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by
forecasting the amount of cash required and monitoring the working capital
of the group to ensure that all liabilities due and known funding requirements
could be met. In addition, banking facilities have been put in place for
contingency purposes. As at 30 April 2013, the Group’s total available banking
facilities were 60,382,000 (2012: HK$49,781,000), of which, HK$49,205,000
(2012: HK$35,811,000) were utilised at the end of the reporting period.

The maturity profile of the Group’s and Company’s financial liabilities as at the

end of the reporting period, based on the contracted undiscounted payments, is

as follows:
AR Group
e St
2013
W ZEAR=ZEAE4 —4254%  ZEDE

On Less than 3 months to 1to5 Over 5 it
demand 3 months one year years years Total
T T# T T Tt T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FA R — ML A Other loans — unsecured 5,341 - = = = 5,341
JAEAT AR A A+ 0 Trade and other payables = 18,246 = = = 18,246
JREASH PR 4 Retention monies payable = = 3,251 - - 3,251
RS4RI Finance lease obligations = 176 527 1,093 = 1,796
SRATEER (WH5E ) Bank loans (Note (i) 35,237 = = = = 35,237
ST Bank overdrafts 13,968 = = = = 13,968
54,546 18,422 3,778 1,093 - 77,839
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i B A A B () Liquidity risk (Continued)
AL Group
e St
2012
WeE ZMAN=ZWAZE4 4204  LE0E
On Less than 3 months to 1to5 Over 5 L
demand 3 months one year years years Total
T#7t T#7t T#u T#7t T#t Tt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
JRE AT B 85 A W) R Amount due to an associate 46 - - - - 46
HAth B 3K — FEALHH Other loans — unsecured 5,789 - - - - 5,789
JEAT AR S HABET 3K IE  Trade and other payables - 14,789 - - - 14,789
JREAS R [ <6 Retention monies payable = = 3,645 - - 3,645
TG FRL A0 7 A Finance lease obligations - 82 244 700 = 1,026
SRATE (F5E @) Bank loans (Note (i)) 28,311 = = = = 28,311
AT L Bank overdrafts 7,500 - - - - 7,500
41,646 14,871 3,889 700 - 61,106
A2 ] Company
e S
2013
BP A ZEAR ZMAE 4 —AERLE
On Less than 3 months to 1to5 Hat
demand 3 months one year years Total
T#x T#x T#x T#x T#x
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
JREAS AR B Ho A EAS 3K I Trade and other payables - 646 - - 646
I St
2012
HIER) ZAN Z=WHAZE—% —HFELE
On Less than 3 months to 1to5S Hat
demand 3 months one year years Total
T#T T# T#x T#T T#T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
JEA B S HAh BEAT 3K IE Trade and other payables 600 - - - 600
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40. A% )8 B A BE ()

i B & 4 R B (i)

it

(i) LI BE R E R L2 AT R A
A L2l 3 4347 B 81 T R4 ) 2 Ry B R o A
FE—=FWPA=THE-ZF—"FNHA =1
H > 55 SR AT B8 3R B B AR & R0 8 40 il &
49,205,000 # 75 2 35,811,000 ¥ TG © % JE R A 4L
B ) BA S AR > 35 Sl R R A ERATAS AT (2R
SRR IR K 2 WO HE o 35 S AE (5 I AR ERAT B

AR 8 8 3 W el ) T K H RO - R

— AR H = H o AAR G R A S B A

£550,796,000 # 76 (% — 4F 37,373,000 #

Jo) °

B I B

AW B3 2 A < il T L 9 R 41 I IME % {1
T8 F) LR

AREEBIR 32 2 SN £ B A 38 5 > BILAIE
SES B < 5l WA BB o AR B
B EZ MR Fou KA RN CGEESME
EWGH) o AL B EETR —EH
Ty LA % R © 2 3 58 A AR o R
PR R REZ B - EEOHR —F— 4
PO =+ HER B R R o ELR A Sl
JEURE © PRI - HLBRERRIE AR 51 o

74 42 [ 308 2 K] A/ R 2 45 A0 7 2 N R H T S8 3
B RS o ANEE I 2 VB AR i i 32 B HE ] o VAR
AR Z R o Uik 2 4 318 (E 5 780,000 ¥ T
KR 2 45 28 (E £ 1,560,000 # T ©

DA 50 BE 4 A 8 2 74 2 1 i T S /9 41 B3 4
ALY o (RO R S BE 2R L 3E A A
B > A% B R BUA AT B M BR 32 2 5h
MEE B S o % o] g 8 = 22 A LA B e 4 1 W By
[RF > (o FHT AP RIE REE 3 | BT 9 5% » Ron & BEE
35 P P RE 2 A ME 4255 ) 2 B

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Note:

(i) Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included in the “on demand”
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 30 April 2013 and 30 April 2012,
the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these bank loans amounted to
HK$49,205,000 and HK$35,811,000, respectively. Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors do not believe that it is probable that the banks will
exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors
believe that such bank loans will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements. As at 30 April 2013, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows will amount to HK$50,796,000 (2012: HK$37,373,000).

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will

fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through transactions
that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily the Macau Pataca, the United States dollar and Renminbi (through the
foreign currency forward contract). The Group mitigates this risk by conducting
transactions in the same currency, whenever possible. The directors consider
there is no material exposure to the Macau Pataca and the United States dollar
as at the end of the reporting period. The directors have reconsidered the
exposure at 30 April 2012 and consider that there was no material exposure.

Accordingly, comparatives have not been presented.

The Group is exposed to fluctuations in the Renminbi exchange rate via the
foreign currency forward contract. The Group’s potential gains are capped,
whilst potential losses are unlimited. The notional value exposed to gains is
HK$780,000 and the notional value exposed to losses is HK$1,560,000.

The sensitivity analysis below has been performed on the foreign currency
forward contract entered into by the Group assuming that a change in foreign
exchange rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to foreign exchange rate for the derivative contract
in existence at that date. A 5% increase or decrease in foreign exchange rate
is used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible

change in foreign exchange rates.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

If the United States dollar/Renminbi exchange rate had been 5% higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s loss for the year ended
30 April 2013 would have increased/decreased by approximately $46,000 and
$4.000, respectively.

Estimation of fair values

The notional amounts of financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less

than one year are assumed to approximate their fair values.

The fair value of balances with related parties has not been determined as
the timing of the expected cash flows of these balances cannot be reasonably

determined because of the relationship.

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new standards and
interpretation which are not yet effective for the year ended 30 April 2013 and
which have not been early adopted by the Group:—

AT FI A s 1% i
AR B R A2
Effective for annual
reporting periods
beginning on or after

B gwHERISS 158 (Ba]) HAn A H 2 251 “F-_H#tH—H
HKAS 1 Amendment Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income 1 July 2012

s eSS 19 5% (2011 4EAR) i E R4 —Z—=£—H—H
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits 1 January 2013
s Er eI 4 27 5% (2011 SRR TS B ek “F—=%—H—H
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2013

v et e A5 28 5% (2011 4EAR) AR R GERELRE “E—=4F—H—H
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2013

A et e AU A 32 5% (IERT) Vs T B S B B 2 251 —Z—E—~H—H
HKAS 32 Amendment Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 1 January 2014
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IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

I E R
AR BEH R A2
Effective for annual
reporting periods
beginning on or after

s ErEHERIEE 36 9% (157]) I B e 2 m i ] 4 A b R —ZF—E—H—H
HKAS 36 Amendment Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets 1 January 2014
T s A HE I EE 155 (1&3T) BUREEK “ZF—=F—H—H
HKFRS 1 Amendment Government Loans 1 January 2013
T U B HE R SE 7 55 (1&3T) PATS o I A5 2 I B 2 i ZEx—=FE—H—H
HKFRS 7 Amendment Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 1 January 2013
7 vk B HE A 7 5 (B5T) SR T A A5 R o —“E—HF—H—H
HKFRS 7 Amendment Mandatory Effective Date and Transition Disclosures 1 January 2015
2 AT U BB HE I 2 A8 5T U S HI 2009-201 1 4F JEII 1A 2 4F B A “EF—=F—HA—H
Amendment to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle 1 January 2013
T U AT HE I 5 9 5% W TH X —HFE—H—H
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2015
T s B HE RIS 10 5% A MH R —F—=%F—H—H
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2013
B s B HEFIU S 11 55 AHZH —F—=F—H—H
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2013
T s BT HE B 12 55 i Fofth A SE i 5 2 4 R ZE—=F—H—H
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2013
T U B HE RIS 13 5% ATEZFHE “Z—=F—H—H
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013
Tl (BB R ERREES) — TR A T R B ) oK 47 AR —“ZF—=4—H—H
P EE 20 5%
HK (IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine 1 January 2013
il (HEH R RE A ) - =g ZF—FE—~H—H
AR 21 9%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies 1 January 2014

ASSE E EL A ) 40 I I - BRAG ST A PR AN DA B
HRTHER S PR 2 ABRT, B ok SOk R
MR AR o H A 2 PRAR A TR
IR A] RESE AR S [0 A 5 4k R A R 2

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the related impact of
adopting the above new standards and interpretation and amendments to
standards in the period of initial application. So far, it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated

financial statements.
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43. A Z i) 32 TP 2 Wl kA

M=% —=4E A = HEEREA T (R A

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

The directors consider the Group’s ultimate controlling party to be Dr. So Yu
Shing.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, which are limited liability companies,

FRIFEA ) FEEW T at 30 April 2013 are as follows:
RATRH CRTRA
REMbE CHTRARE sk 2 T
R IR /M A Proportion of
Place of N Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ TR fully paid up issued share capital/
I 2 ) 4 registration Form of share capital/ registered capital FEET
Name of subsidiary operations legal entity registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
H# k3
Directly Indirectly
HHEEERR AT it ARAT il - 100%  SEBRY
10,0003#7¢
Graceman Industrial Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Manufacturing of plastic ties
company HK$10,000
KRB A IR A ] il ARAT il - 100%  HEAHIES
10,0003
Skylon International Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Gondolas rental
company HK$10,000
RS 5 H A ] it AIRAH il - 100%  fRHCEETR
10,0003#7¢
Skyway Transport & Trading Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Provision of transportation
Company Limited company HK$10,000 services
B TRARA Fits AIRAH il - 0% MR
1,226,667 T B5 -~ et e
HE B AR DL R
B TeE b 2 %4
THEBIHS
Sinogain Engineering Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Trading, design, sales,
company HKS$1,226,667 repairs and maintenance of
gondolas and parapet

railings and access equipment
installation and maintenance
services



EREZER AR AT WLS Holdings Limited

130 iy S R Mk

43. A w] 3 B E A wRE R PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

RATRH CRTRA
REMb R RARE sk 2 T
R IR /I A Proportion of
Place of N Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ TR fully paid up issued share capital/
I 2 ) 4 registration Form of share capital/ registered capital FEET
Name of subsidiary operations legal entity registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
H# k3
Directly Indirectly
ERE TREEEARA A Fifs AT il - 100%  SREVERSHRE
100,000 #7T
WLS Contractors Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Provision of management
company HK$100,000 contracting services
TR (R TR T AR Lk - 100% BT
ARAT 25,000 [t
WLS (Macau) Engineering Macau Limited Ordinary Scaffolding works business
Company Limited company MOP25,000
e R A R il ARAF Lk - 100%  FRELERIME
100,000 ¥t
Wui Loong Consultancy Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Provision of consultancy services
Company Limited company HK$100,000
e A R il ARAH Lk - 100%  WENA
100,000 ¥ T
Wui Loong Holdings Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Property holding
Company Limited company HK$100,000
e AT e i ARAH Lk - 100%  BETEEE
27 YEIESia
B E
IRAET (F5E)
1,900,000 ¥ 7t
Wui Loong Scaffolding Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Scaffolding works business
Works Company Limited company HK$2 and property investment
Non-voting
deferred (Note)

HK$1,900,000
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

AREFA CRTRA
REMARSE,/ CRITRAR s 7 2 T b
s WA /g A Proportion of
Place of EA Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ HiEL fully paid up issued share capital/
W8 24 ) 44 registration Form of share capital/ registered capital TR
Name of subsidiary operations legal entity registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
H# filtk
Directly Indirectly
ERE R S R A A il HIRAR vl - 100%  SHLFEER
100,000 # ¢
Wui Loong System Scaffolds Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Scaffolding work business
Company Limited company HK$100,000
B A RA A i HIRAR riliie - 100%  HEBERE
100,000 #7C
Wui Luen Engineering Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Fitting out business
Company Limited company HK$100,000

WEGE @ M AR AE A N R A S, SR
J R ROR G sk e & RS > INERE R g 2 R
[5 5 4x Hh 2 22 AT (0] R 5 Y A I 3 A b
G3URT AR W A A 1,000,000 45 Hs
TOAR 2 A B 2R A5 BRI AL -

AT Z AR AT A RF R - 25 B R 2 m) A e 17

ATATAE TS 76 5 o

b RINHAN T R G L2 AR T A
B 2 AR FI B A F o HEE R S A
Wi Jag 23 ) A HE A e IR R R TR

Note: The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends, no rights to attend or vote

at general meetings and no rights to receive any surplus assets in a return of capital

in a winding-up (other than one half of the balance of such assets after the sum of
HK$100,000 billion has been distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares of the

Company in such winding-up).

None of the subsidiaries had any debt security outstanding at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results or assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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e RESULTS
BRENMA=AHIRAEE
Year ended 30 April
“F-=g SR ZF—f CE-RE CERNE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Tkt Tt Tt Tt T
HK$’000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$’000 HKS$°000
(H31) (31 (H31) (H31)
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
BHEH Turnover 125,949 115,124 105,741 133,273 147,612
B A Cost of sales (106,741) (94,358) (86,235) (109,492) (119,885)
EA Gross profit 19,208 20,766 19,506 23,781 21,727
HAA Other income 1,570 1,462 1,129 2,152 1,115
T X Administrative expenses (32,771 (34,128) (49,226) (35,842) (24,331)
BEWENTE Increase/(decrease) in fair value of

I/ (D) investment properties 6,410 6,850 5420 5,350 (2,038)
R B A Gain/(Loss) on disposal of property,

WERA/ (F51R) plant and equipment 6 13,345 5 (1,050) =
B Finance costs (1,612) (1,863) (2,927) (3,915) (3,628
T A L[] P Share of results of jointly controlled

PEES entities - - - - (471)
NSO 5 /8 ) S e o Impairment of amount due from

fEFHZ B associates and jointly controlled entities (6,779) - (2,100) - -
BrBi (B1R) /A (Loss)/profit before taxation (13,968) 6,432 (28,193) (9,524) (1,626)
B Taxation (661) (2,243) 429 1,797 1,427
AR (B518) /Al (Loss)/profit for the year (14,629) 4,189 (27,764) (7,727) (199)
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AR ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
RIMA=+H
At 30 April
B2 R ZR——F ZZ-RFE ZRFHE ZFRNE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
TH0 Fitoo THTT SR Tt TIT
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000
(E71) (E51) (&41) (E51) (E51)
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
R Total assets 208,892 205,050 190,995 209,352 214,268 202,667
AR Total liabilities (80,918) (63,273) (76,254) (90,783) (106,017) (116,590)
127,974 141,777 114,741 118,569 108,251 106,077
ANFIRERTFA N Equity attributable to equity
JRE A £ holders of the Company 134,234 147,777 117,784 120,022 109,646 107,488
e 4 Non-controlling interests (6,260) (6,000) (3,043) (1,453) (1,395) (1,411)
127,974 141,777 114,741 118,569 108,251 106,077
B RE Note:

At = A A il 2 S5 4 B A it O

ZRRMAT A -

)

The above financial summary prior to 2007 has not been adjusted for the effect on the changes

in the accounting policies.
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RO ZAENA = HZBRE
LU S

LB

Description

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AS AT 30 APRIL 2013

&
Use

G 440 T 48 1A

(CFFM)
Approximate R BE
gross floor area
(square feet) Status

Vacant

A4 B P 4

[ ENERid
Percentage of the
Group’s interest

1)

2)

3)

AT
SEBLET 11 9%
FEREIS A JEE 10421 2
Unit 21

10/F, Pacific Link Tower,
Southmark, No. 11 Yip
Hing Street, Hong Kong

AR

SEBLET 11 9%

R A JE 10 #22-23 %
Unit 22-23

10/F, Pacific Link Tower,
Southmark, No. 11 Yip
Hing Street, Hong Kong

AR

SEBLET 11 9%

R A JE 10 #2527 %
Unit 25-27

10/F, Pacific Link Tower,
Southmark, No. 11 Yip

Hing Street, Hong Kong

7

Commercial

7

Commercial

7

Commercial

626 HiAH
Rental

1,130 HhAH
Rental

2,285 HiAH
Rental

100%

100%

100%
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2. (a) EEWIKEBHEAAARNFNITE
=
(b) HIEERZ ol B AN R AT
E5 g
(c) BRI e A By AR A BUAT
=
(d) BERAFERG ((EFR]) EEE
4 o
3. FHAEZRTEAR )N FAZ SRS b A e

4

>

B A F e I 0 25 i S Y A T 51 PRk 5
REBPERRE R A SERT)

PR

4, Bk

(@)

Tﬁﬁ K (o) BEMBIIRT - IRIER
WS T 52 B T AT FR A T Al SR 7
TR (81260 B LAl
1 B AR A A 2 ) 2 A A B
B (e 28 R 30) AT AR ] —
YIME S DAL SE ~ 3547 S R 3 AR /A ]
JBes A R4 T A o S AE T REZE
”@%%%ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ&%&@
~ i S IR

-z —5

&3k  Annual Report 2013

% AR K €l oy

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of
shareholders of WLS Holdings Limited (the “Company”) will be held at Rooms
1001-1006, 10th Floor, Southmark, 11 Yip Hing Street, Wong Chuk Hang,
Aberdeen, Hong Kong on 29 August 2013 at 2:30 p.m. to transact the following

ordinary businesses:

l. to receive, consider and approve the audited consolidated financial

statements and the reports of the directors and auditors for the year ended

30 April 2013;
2. (a) To re-elect Mr. Woo Siu Lun as the executive director of the
Company;
(b) To re-elect Mr. So Wang Bon, Edward as the executive director of
the Company;
(c) Tore-elect Mr. Yu Yeung Hoi, Stephen as the executive director of
the Company;
(d) To authorise the board of directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) fix their remuneration.
3. to re-appoint the Company’s auditors and to authorise the Directors to fix

their remuneration;

and, as special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following

resolutions with or without amendments as ordinary resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

4. THAT:

(a)

subject to paragraph (c) of this resolution, pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM
Listing Rules”), the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant
Period (as defined below) of all the powers of the Company to
allot, issue and deal with the unissued shares in the capital of the
Company and to make or grant offers, agreements and options
which might require the exercise of such powers be and the same

is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;
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JBAOB AR K

AR PR ZE (a) BET A 1) HLAE I 52 1 7 (b)
A TR B R A ) A2 s ) e

TEAT BRI P 45 AR AT % 5 HE 0 1Y)

B IRk~ Th ke S TR

the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution shall authorise
(©)

AR AN R R () BT A RO L (c)
YA T P 2 K ] 7o A 0% P S A 1 i

B (TS i A 1 AR Sl L it i

DRI T i 2 ) ~ AT i B A J A

TR 48 0 (M AR 9 ) A i (8 6 R

the Directors during the Relevant Period to make or grant offers,

agreements and options which might require the exercise of such
powers after the end of the Relevant Period,;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed
T30 5 B () AR AR A T ) b
R T4 4 14 A S R HE AT A
BY (did) AR5 AN IRE A= 3500110 2 2 ] 4 4k
FAR A RN LAT o] LA AR sl {01 22
Pk e B T B4 T B4y AR IR A 1Y

conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant
to options or otherwise), issued or dealt with by the Directors
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution,
otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as defined below);
or (ii) the exercise of any option under the share option scheme of
the Company; or (iii) any scrip dividend or similar arrangement
2 TR AT 3 PSS T AT B IR

providing for the allotment and issue of shares in lieu of the whole
B
A8 o AN T 51 A AR

or part of a dividend on shares in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company in force from time to time, shall not
exceed the aggregate of:
() AREEEMEAPAAFD (i)  20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital
PEATIRATEI{E AR 20% 5 K of the Company in issue on the date of the passing of this
resolution; and
(i) M AR N ] R R A — (ii)  (if the Directors are so authorised by a separate ordinary
T S A R R RE - A resolution of the shareholders of the Company) the nominal
SR B R A P SR A AR
JIT B 1R ) AR 2 ) AT Ao TR (R
A (B R AE A A Rk SR AR
H A 2 7] B 3847 A 19 T

(HARE10%) > BAREE (a)
B RETR A Z UL PR 5 I

amount of any share capital of the Company repurchased by

the Company subsequent to the passing of this resolution (up

to a maximum equivalent to 10% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in issue on the
date of the passing of this resolution), and the authority
pursuant to paragraph (a) of this resolution shall be limited
accordingly; and
(d) AR S - (d)
[ BRI | 48 i A PRk Se0a e H 1)

for the purposes of this resolution:
2N A =3 G R H A 1R A
fi] :

(1)

AN )T Ji B AR A K o &
R 5

this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:
=]

“Relevant Period”” means the period from the date of the passing of

®

the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company;
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ELH%‘*”E%SI%QEEAZZFH%
AT 2 A Y -

[t | T4 A 2 = T 1A 30 ] A
T8 RE ROER H U1 2 81 A O3 ) 2 ISR
2 T 149 P 4 A N 7 56 R 1
Je Ll B2 B A N m By o EdR
FL B SR A T AR A M A A
TR S Ay B A 2 (MESE
EAL W SR A AR IR A s LA
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(i1)) the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
or any other applicable laws of the Cayman Islands to be
held; and

(iii)) the date on which the authority given under this resolution
is revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution of the

shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares in the Company, or offer
or issue of warrants, options or other securities giving rights to
subscribe for shares open for a period fixed by the Directors to
eligible holders of shares in the Company on the register on a fixed
record date in proportion to their then holdings of shares (subject
to such exclusion or other arrangements as the Directors may
deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements,
or having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws
of, or the requirements of, or the expense or delay which may be
involved in determining the existence or extent of any restrictions
or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of, any
jurisdiction outside Hong Kong or any recognised regulatory body

or any stock exchange outside Hong Kong).

S. THAT:

(@)

subject to paragraph (b) of this resolution, the exercise by the
Directors during the Relevant Period (as defined below) of all
powers of the Company to repurchase its shares on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
or any other stock exchange outside Hong Kong on which the
shares of the Company may be listed and recognised by the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC”) and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for such purpose,
and otherwise in accordance with the rules and regulations of the
SFC, the GEM Listing Rules, the Articles of Association of the
Company and all other applicable laws in this regard, be and the

same is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;
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JBAOB AR K

AR A AR AR A Pk 5 (a) BT A Y (b)
L HEAE A R A A B [ ) A A D

53 T P 4 S 15 A AR PR R 7

A H AR A 7 23T RS T {48 4

the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company which
10% > ASPRRSE (a) BRHEINHZ
BRI 5

may be repurchased by the Company pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) of this resolution during the Relevant Period shall
not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued

share capital of the Company as at the date of the passing of this
(©) WIARERMS :

resolution and the authority pursuant to paragraph (a) of this
resolution shall be limited accordingly;

(c)
[ AN | 45 h A ek S A 1

HEZE R 21 =2 i fe L H A L 3
M :

for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the date of the passing of this
resolution until whichever is the earliest of:
()  ASAFER B A A A (1)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
WIRF 5 Company;
(i) FARNE S FHBERK (i)  the expiration of the period within which the next annual general
A0 Kz 4 1) 55 B = B S AT ] 28 meeting of the Company is required by the Memorandum and
BB E - A A FZEH B Articles of Association of the Company or any other applicable
T JiE R R A K ) T RR i laws of the Cayman Islands to be held; and
W 5 K
(i) A2 A A IR K g BRI (iii) the date on which the authority given under this resolution is
o 7 PR R S TR B i A P revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders
EESlErdiipaky sk i of the Company in general meeting.
6. Bk 6. THAT:
FFeE4 R ST M R S E OB 1%
RIZ T 2 SR — AR » DT (AR
N FREIAR SR DA 55 4 TH PR FE O S - HE

T B BERBEATIBEAR > R h A A A ]
MRYELL 126 5 TH Pk S T T 2 A )

=e 2 Al

subject to the ordinary resolutions nos. 4 and 5 above being duly passed,
RS B
B2 10% °

AR R BEAS A T {2 B - MR RO AS
EQSIFERSS

the unconditional general mandate granted to the Directors to exercise the
powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with unissued shares pursuant
to resolution no. 4 above be and is hereby extended by the addition thereto
of an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital
of the Company repurchased by the Company under the authority granted
H A/ BT IRA pursuant to resolution no. 5 above, provided that such amount shall not exceed

10 percent of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the passing of this resolution.
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7. THAT:

the refreshment of the scheme limit of the Company’s Share Option Scheme
adopted on 30 August 2011 and all other Share Option Schemes of the
Company, up to 10% of the number of shares in the capital of the Company
in issue as at the date of passing this resolution (the “New Scheme Limit”)
be and is hereby approved and any director of the Company be and is hereby
authorised to do such acts and execute such documents to effect the New

Scheme Limit.

By order of the Board
WLS Holdings Limited
So Yu Shing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 July 2013

Head office and principal place of business in Hong Kong:
Rooms 1001-1006. 10th Floor

Tower A, Southmark

No. 11 Yip Hing Street

Wong Chuk Hang

Aberdeen

Hong Kong
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1.

Notes:
JUATRE H R AR I 200 08 45 T 4 B ) R S

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened by the above
K FERNOR > BEHERIR— k2] notice is entitled to appoint one or more proxy to attend and, subject to the
FRFRE » MEAEAR A A i 2 ) Ak e K A
B ARG ST R T AR SR o 2R AR
TS AN AR o

PR ZAT FA IR KO 1 M A%

provisions of Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, vote in
his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

H 2. In order to be valid, the form of proxy must be deposited together with a power of
FESCF (ANAE) A% 28 w8 N\ B 8 v A I % 45 attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified
TR Bk P SO RIAS > WA ZEUI K s AT copy of that power or authority, at the office of the Company’s Hong Kong branch
AT 48 G 1) 38 S SR AT IRF (] 48 /INRFRITRE BE AR /A ] registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
9 JE 93408 5 8 RO A W 0 1) A L (R East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than forty-eight hours before the time for
IF A BR A B (kb 5 7 v B4 B2 ) R BR 28 holding the meeting or any adjourned meeting.
SR SRTE .0 2648) > HARRL -
3. AR ESUERMHA RIS - BLIEMR 3.
PR EM b AR Rl R AR A ) R AL U T
O fRAIAE > DARMERC S S AT IRy -

S B 0 7224 7 40 0
{5 CHEARR A 24 BB M -0 s 22 7 O
.

T REAHERQ A AT USRS R8T REZH T 8547
BB ERAE) -

In relation to the proposed resolutions nos. 4 and 6 above, approval is being
sought from the shareholders of the Company for the grant to the Directors of a
general mandate to authorise the allotment and issue of shares under the GEM
Listing Rules. The Directors have no immediate plan to issue any new shares of
A B B SR B RYSE STHPRGRESE » S IR

shareholders of the Company.

the Company other than shares which may fall to be issued under the share option
scheme of the Company or any scrip dividend scheme which may be approved by

WY (A e AT ez SRR s ST T Ry
TEBEAE 8 I B R TE UL T 278 28 W) R A A1)
it L B0y = ot B R A A SE A AR A
HUE M P EOR > DLaRAS A Rl RO 4R 2 1
P B

In relation to the proposed resolution no. 5 above, the Directors wish to state

BRI I BT B E - SR R

that they will exercise the powers conferred thereby to repurchase shares in

[FA 2 —F—=A4F0 H =+ H IR R AR
— DF AR T AL AR R BB SN o

circumstances which they deem appropriate for the benefit of the shareholders of
the Company. An explanatory statement containing the information necessary to

enable the shareholders of the Company to make an informed decision to vote on
the proposed resolution as required by the GEM Listing Rules will be set out in a

separate document to be despatched to the shareholders of the Company with the
annual report for the year ended 30 April 2013.
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